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CORPORATE PROFILE
naliéft

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
initially incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands under the Company Law, Chapter 22 (law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On
10 August 2016, the Company changed its domicile from Cayman
Islands to Bermuda by way of de-registration in the Cayman Islands
and confinuation as an exempted company under the laws of
Bermuda. The shares [the “Shares”) of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 March 2011.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) are principally
engaged in the production and sales of marble slags and the
trading of marble slabs in China. The Group is a mining operator,
focusing on the mining of marble slags, and owns the largest beige
marble mine, in China [(in terms of its marble reserves based on
the certification issued by China Stone Material Association (1 B
EMHE)in 2010, namely Zhangjiaba Mine, which is located
in Zhenjiang Village, Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan
Province, China.

The mining permit of the Zhangjiaba Mine expired on 21 February
2021. The renewed license was issued on 7 March 2022 and
valid from 21 February 2021 to 21 February 2026.

In December 2021, the Company commenced a franchise business
in relation to a “new mode of food and beverage consumption”,
which involves preparing and delivering food from virtual restaurant
brands for distribution to customers in the United Kingdom. The
virtual restaurant brands industry involves either a delivery-only
operation of making food out of a central kitchen or a separate
brand with food being prepared out of an existing restaurant.

4 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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RESOURCES AND RESERVES

According to the competent person's report dated 7 March 2011,
the Zhangjiaba Mine had 44.2 million cubic meters of measured
and indicated marble resources. The block rate is expected fo be
38% on the marble resources, which is equivalent to an estimated
16.8 million cubic meters of proved and probable marble reserves.

The resources and reserves estimates for marble stones of
Zhangjiaba Mine in Sichuan Province as at 31 December 2021
under JORC Code (as defined in Chapter 18 of the Listing Rules)

are set out in the following table:

R At
RIFEABA011FIA7EMAEHRALR
& SRR L B 44,200,00037 77 K ) 1
PRIETABAER KBAE RO FA X
B H /38%  EAEHHE R 16,800,0003Z 77 K
IBERBBABRAHE -

R2021F12A31BREIORCER (EE R
EHRAEISE)FEM M)A KRR FHE L
BAAEREREFEEHIIN TX:

2021 2020

202145 2020%F

JORC Resource and Reserve Class Cubic meter Cubic meter
JORC ERKFEEHR K 5K
Measured Resource REER 13.35 million B& 14.21 million B &
Indicated Resource HTEEIR 24.09 million B8 25.65 million B &
Total Resource BwE R 37 .44 million B & 39.86 million B &
Proved Reserve BERE 4.76 million BB 5.07 million B &
Probable Reserve BEEE 8.59 million B& 9.14 million B &
Total Reserve wE R 13.35 million B & 14.21 million & &

Note:

The remaining resources and reserves for marble stones of Zhangjiaba Mine for each
year were estimated based on the independent competent person’s report dated on
7 March 2011 (as shown in the Company's Prospectus). Any changes in the resources
and reserves estimates for each year due fo mining consumption and exploration
activities were confirmed by internal experts. There were no material changes fo these
reported estimates from 7 March 2011 to 31 December 2021.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FRERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”] of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Llimited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results

of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 ["FY2021").

FINAL RESULTS
For FY2021, the Group recorded revenue of RMB74.2 million
(FY2020: R/\/\B72.8 million) and a gross profit of RMB15.2
million (FY2020: RMB6.9 million],

approximately 2.0% and 120.3% respectively, as compared fo
those for the year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020").

representing an increase of

Net loss aftributable to owners of the Company was RMB50.3
million for FY2021,
compared to a net loss of RMB30.4 million aftributable to the

representing an increase of 65.5%, as

owners of the Company for FY2020. Basic loss per Share for
FY2021 was RMB1.8 cents, representing an increase of 63.6%, as
compared to a basic loss of RMB1.1 cents per share for FY2020.

BUSINESS REVIEWS AND PROSPECTS

The Covid-19 pandemic is now entering the third year but its
threat to the global economy has not lessened. Despite the mass
vaccination roll-out in 2021, the global daily infection figures have
still been soaring dramatically. China is the one of the few countries
that managed to bring the spread of the Covid-19 under control in
the earlier stage of the pandemic and has by and large resumed
normal business activities in 2021. China’s economy, though
recovering, is sfill fragile. There are recent signs that the robust
upturn in the economy is losing momentum. The growth of China's
property investment slowed down as a result of the debt crisis of a
few large property developers and the effects of tougher regulatory
actions on corporate excess debts. Small and medium construction
companies have suffered the brunt of the economic downtfurn
brought on by the aftermath of the pandemic and the liquidity-tight
conditions. They have inclined fo be costconscious in their selection
of construction materials. The sales of marble slabs dropped by
62.6% as a result of the weak demand of marble slabs and the
tightened credit line to the customers of the Group during FY2021.
The Group strove to manage a fine line between business growth
and credit risk.

6 ChinaKingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FFE3Res

On the contrary, sales of marble slags recorded a strong growth
of 87.1% for FY2021.

production of daily products, such as construction materials, paper,

Marble slags are widely used in the

plastic, paints, etc. The demand of marble slags has suffered
less of an impact from the economic downturn. The demand of
marble slags was relatively strong and the selling price has already
refurned to pre-pandemic levels. However, as China’s economy
faced downward pressure and coupled with the complexity and
uncertainty of the external business environment, the sluggish
domestic consumption might jeopardize the rebound of the marble
slag business of the Group. Nonetheless, the Group believes that
the marble slag business will still be able to maintain positive growth
in the forthcoming years.

The Group suffered a setback on the vertical diversification
expansion plan for the ground calcium carbonate (the “GCC”)
business with a GCC manufacturer, which it has already ceased
negofiations with for a cooperation plan in 2020. Calcium
Carbonate is a chemical compound that can be extracted from our
marble reserves. The Group was hoping to collaborate with a GCC
manufacturer fo produce crushed or ground calcium carbonate,
which can then be used as an industrial mineral. Despite this sef
back, the Group has not aborted its expansion plan of the GCC
business and has continued to look for another cooperation partner
to roll out the GCC business. The Group believes that the Company
has a competitive advantage to develop the GCC business, given
the rich marble resources that can be extracted from the Zhangjiaba
Mine, a core material for the production of ground calcium
carbonate.

With the Covid-19 pandemic inducing many countries to implement
lockdowns and other restrictions on dining out, food delivery
services have experienced a surge in demand. Customers are now
become increasingly accustomed fo using food delivery services,
which has created a great opportunity for the virtual restaurant
business. In December 2021, the Company commenced a virtual
restaurant brand for a delivery-only operation. This virtual restaurant
business is new fo the Company. The Company believes that this
virtual restaurant business is a good business diversification for the
Group in these unpredictable economic times.
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The global economy has been shackled by the Covid-19 pandemic
with no end in sight. Despite the escalating rivalry between China
and the United States, the decoupling of these two of the most
influential countries is still possible. It is full of uncertainty whether
the China economy will be able to maintain the positive momentum
going forward. The Company will continue to maintain a high
degree of vigilance against unpredictable international developments
and sensitive external factors that could adversely affect the Group's
business. Despite the difficulties ahead, the Group will continue to
consolidate the production and operations of the mining business
and extend its cusfomer base to improve its business performance.
On the other hand, the Group will also continue to explore new
business opportunities so arising in order to maximize shareholders'’
value in the future.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for
their attention and support to the Group in these difficult times. |
would also like to thank our directors, management team and all
staff of the Group for their dedication and hard work fo the Group
for the past year.

Zhang Cuiwei
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

8  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE51sRI S i

BUSINESS REVIEW

Marble Slab Business

Marble stones are widely used in the construction and interior
design and decor industry for decorative purposes due fo its
bright colour and lustrous finish. Marble slabs are used in interior
and exterior decorations, laying pavements, stfairs, flooring and
furniture. The Group sells marble slabs through various distributors
or purchasing agents, which have a strong track record and
broad sales and marketing network with property developers and
construction companies in China.

China is still grappling with the economic effects of the Covid-19
pandemic and frade tension with the United Stafes. China also
faced the challenge of potential market disruption on the front of
the debt crisis of a few large property developers, which started to
ripple through the whole property sector in China last year. Some
construction companies, parficularly small and medium sized ones,
are facing financial strain and have as a result inclined to be cost-
conscious with their selection of construction materials. For FY2021,
sales of marble slabs was RMB15.5 million, representing a
decrease of RMB25.9 million or 62.6%, as compared to RMB41.4
million for FY2020. The Group believes that the weak demand of
marble slabs will continue for a stretch. There is no doubt that 2021
was a difficult year for Chinese property developers and might
worsen in the coming year, with some property developers under
great pressure to survive. Against this backdrop, the Group has
been more prudent with the anticipated lowered credit quality of its
customers. The implementation of tighter credit control procedures
by the Group could result in a further decrease of marble slab sales
fransactions with those customers, which have overdue outstanding

invoices.

Marble Slag and Calcium Carbonate Business
Marble slags are produced in the course of stripping the overburden
at the Zhangjiaba Mine and by crushing the cracked marble stones.
Marble slag is a core raw material used in the production of GCC.
The Group sells the marble slags to GCC manufacturers located
close by the Zhangjiaba mine.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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China is one of the few economies in the world to achieve an
overall positive rate of growth during the global pandemic-related
recession. However, the uneven recovery across the countries around
the world and strained United Stated-China relations have posed
concerns for the outlook of the China economy. Notwithstanding
the uncertainties, the demand for marble slogs remained stable
and positive during the year 2021. For FY2021, sales of marble
slags was RMB58.6 million, representing an increase of RMB27.2
million or 87.1%, as compared to RMB31.4 million for FY2020.
The increase was primarily due to an increase in the production and
demand of marble slags and increase in the average selling price of
marble slags resulting from the recovery of most industrial secfors in
China. However, the recovery could be at risk or weakened by the
economic effects from sluggish domestic consumption and the slow
recovery of the export markefs due fo the trade tension between the

United States and China.

Virtual Restaurant Business

In December 2021, the Company commenced a virtual restaurant
brand for a delivery-only operation, which does not involve
operating any restaurant. The business involves the Company
engaging an online webpage that is hosted by a third-party food
delivery platform with the food being prepared either out of a third-
party central kitchen or setting up a separate brand with food being
prepared out of an existing franchised restaurant. The Company has
completed the startup process and built a team for the new business
headed by the founder and former CEOQ of bigfoodie.co.uk, one
of the largest takeaway online platforms in the United Kingdom.
The Company's first brand, "Burgogi Korean BBQ Burger”, has
already rolled out in london as a part of its debut brand launch in

December 2021.

Exploration, Development and Production Activities
The Group focused on development and mining at the Zhangjiaba
Mine during FY2021. Based on an independent competent
person’s report dated 7 March 2011 (as shown in the Company’s
Prospectus), the Zhangjiaba Mine had approximately 44.2 million
cubic meters of measured and indicated marble resources as at the
time of the competent person’s report in 2011, which represented
approximately 16.8 million cubic mefers of proved and probable
marble reserves based on a block rate of 38%. There was no
geological exploration activity for new marble mines during

FY2021.

10 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

The Zhangjiaba Mine is mainly divided into the eastern mining zone
and the western mining zone. During FY2021, the Group continued
to carry out the stripping of the overburden materials at the surface
of the deposits for both the eastern and western mining zones. The
deposit in these areas is sfill cracked. The Group expects that the
further development of the mine to lower benches will be required
for large block production, which will commence no earlier than

2025.

During FY2021, the aggregate expenditure of the mining operation
of the Group was approximately RMB40.4 million (FY2020:
RMB26.8 million), which mainly included depreciation on property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMBO.4 million (FY2020:
RMBO.5 million), comsumable stores of approximately RMB1.1
million (FY2020: Nil) and subcontracting cost of stripping of
approximately RMB38.7 million (FY2020: RMB25.9 million).
The Group expanded the mine areas explored by the outsourced
engineering team in order to reduce the fixed cosfs of production
and increase the financial flexibility of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue
The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB1.4 million
or 2.0% from approximately RMB72.8 million for FY2020 to
approximately RMB74.2 million for FY2021. The increase was
primarily due to a combined effect of (i) an increase of RMB27.2
million in sales of marble slags from RMB31.4 million for FY2020
to RMB58.6 million for FY2021, resulting from an increase in
production and demand of marble slags and increase in average
selling price of marble slags. and (i) a decrease of RMB25.9
million in sales of marble slabs from RMB41.4 million for FY2020
to RMB15.5 million for FY2021

for construction materials and the Group's fightening credit control

as a result of the weak demand

’

towards its customers.
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Revenue by products

REEmME WA
Year ended 31 December

BZEI12B31HLEE

2021 2020 Change
20214 20204 g

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARBT T
Marble slags AELES 58,647 31,352 +87.1%
Marble slabs RIE AR 15,491 41,413 -62.6%
Sale of food HERM 109 - N/AiE A
74,247 72,765 +2.0%

Analysis by sales volume and selling price of marble related business

BEAEREBEEXNHEEREEETHIMN
Year ended 31 December
HBZ12H31HLEE

2021 2020 Change
20214 20204 28
Sales volume: Sl
Marble slags [thousand tons) AEAEB (FHE) 2,586 1,719 +50.4%
Marble slabs (square meter) REHRM (FFHK) 56,925 147,500 -61.4%
Average selling prices: FHEE:
Marble slags (RMB per ton) RELRE (BEARET) 22.7 18.2 +24.7%
Marble slabs (RMB per square meter)  REAIRY (BFH K
ARETT) 272.1 280.8 -3.1%
Gross profit and Gross profit margin EFMRERNER

Gross profit increased by approximately RMB8.3 million or 120.3%
from approximately RMB6.9 million for FY2020 to approximately
RMB15.2 million for FY2021. The increase was primarily due to an
increase in the gross profit of marble slags.

Gross profit margin increased by 11.0 percentage points from 9.5%
for FY2020 to 20.5% for FY2021. The increase was primarily due
to the cost advantage gained from the increase in the production
output for marble slags and an increase in average selling price of
marble slags.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from RMB1.9 million for
FY2020 to RMB3.7 million for FY2021. The increase was primarily
due fo an increase in value added tax and natural resource tax on
sales, resulting from an increase in the sales of marble slags.

12 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased from RMB20.5 million for
FY2020 to RMB20.6 million for FY2021. The increase was
primarily due to an increase in expenses for the renewal of the
mining permit and additional government levies in relation to the
Zhangjiaba Mine but partially offset by a decrease in other general
administration expenses, such as depreciation and amortisation,
legal and professional fees and consultancy fees.

Impairment loss under expected credit loss model
The Group made an impairment loss, net of reversal, of RMB7.4
million on trade receivable for FY2021, representing a decrease
of RMB7.0 million, as compared to RMB14.4 million for FY2020.
The impairment loss for FY2021 was primarily due to an increase
in gross trade receivables resulting from payment delays of the
outstanding invoices owed from marble slab customers, given the
tightening financial market conditions. The Group manages ifs credit
risk by offering standardized credit terms tfo its marble products
customers for an approved credit term of 90 days. However, some
major customers with longer relationships with the Group were
granted longer payment terms. The Group's credit policy and the
determination of impairment loss on trade receivables are also
influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer and the
default risk of the industry in which the custfomers operate.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of non-
financial assets

An impairment loss of HK$33.5 million on non-financial assets
was provided for during FY2021. The provision for impairment
was made primarily due fo o decrease in recoverable amounts
from cash-generating units derived from the Zhangjiaba Mine due
to delayed marble block mining and production activities. The
Company engaged an independent appraisal firm to assist with
the assessment of the recoverable amount of cash generating units
in respect of the Zhangjiba Mine based on its future cash flow
projections.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss of RMB50.3
million for FY2021, representing an increase of loss of RMB19.9
million as compared to a loss of RMB30.4 million for FY2020.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's tofal equity interests were
approximately RMB261.6 million, representing a decrease of
16.5% as compared with RMB313.1 million as at 31 December
2020. The decrease was mainly attributable to a loss of RMB50.3
million recorded for FY2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB7Z.1 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB4.3 million). Cash and bank balances were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi
("RMB"). The Group has adequate financial resources to meet the
onticipoted future |iquidify requirement and copiTo| expendifure
commitment.

As at 31 December 2021, total borrowings of the Group,
comprising other loans of approximately RMB7.1 million (31
December 2020: RMB3.9 million) and a director’s loan (included
in amount due fo directors] of approximately RMB4.7 million (31
December 2020: RMB4.4 million) was unsecured and matured
within one year. The annual interest rate of the borrowings for
FY2021 ranged from 5% to 10% per annum [FY2020: 5% to 12%
per annum). All of the borrowings are dominated in Hong Kong
dollars and RMB and accounted for as current liabilities of the
Group. The Group does not currently use any derivatives fo manage
the inferest rate risk. Gearing ratio, representing total borrowings

divided by total equity, was 0.05 (31 December 2020: 0.03)

Capital Expenditure
During FY2021, the Group's capital expenditure amounted to
RMB5.2 million (FY2020: RMB6.3 million), which was primarily

related to construction in progress on mining infrastructure.

Charge of the Group's assets
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any

charges on its assefs.
Significant investment held

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no material
investments held by the Group.
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Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in the People's
Republic of China (“PRC"). The Group is not exposed to significant
foreign exchange risk as most of the Group's business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in RMB, which is
the functional and reporting currency of the Group, except certain
administrative expenses of the Hong Kong office which were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group has not entered info
any foreign exchange contracts as hedging measures.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had a capital
commitment for the purchose of property, p\ont and equipment and
construction of property, plant and equipment which were contracted
for but not provided for amounted to approximately RMB8.8 million
and approximately RMB6.8 million, respectively.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets
Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have

any other specific plans for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2021.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of environmental policies and performance can be found in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” contained in
this annual report. The Environment, Social and Governance Report
contains further information on the work done and efforts made by
the Group on environmental protection, legal compliance and other
aspects of the sustainable growth and development of the businesses

of the Group.

Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations
During FY2021 and up fo the date of this annual report, the Board
was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.
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Key Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to employees
and reviews staff benefits regularly. The Group intends to use its
best effort to attract and atfain appropriate and suitable personnel
to provide services fo the Group.

The Group attaches importance to the relationships with its custfomers
and suppliers. The Group believes that building a long-term
beneficial relationship with each of them is of paramount importance
to establish mutual trust, loyalty and business development and on
which the Group's success and sustainability rely.

The Group will continue to maintain and strengthen its relationship
with its customers through regular contact with them. It is the industry
norm for the marble mine operators to select a few major distributors
and manufacturers, which have production sites that are close to
the marble mine in order to save fransportation cosfs, management
costs as well as sales and markefing costs. Due to this industry
practice, the Directors are of the view that there is no significant risk
associated with reliance on a few major customers.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 36
employees (31 December 2020: 28 employees). The tofal staff
costs, including directors” emoluments, share option benefits and
pension scheme confributions, were approximately RMB5.7 million
for FY2021 (FY2020: RMB4.6 million).

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of the individual employee and on the basis of salary trends in Hong
Kong and the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to the
Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute a discretionary
bonus fo its employees as an incentive for their confribution to the

Group.

Use of proceeds from fund raising activities

On 3 March 2017 and 24 April 2017, the Company entered into
an agreement and supplemental agreement with an underwriter and
issued 2,360,068,975 rights shares to qualifying shareholders by
way of a rights issue at a subscription price of HK$0.12 per rights
share on the basis of five rights shares for every share in issue on
the record date.
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The net proceeds from the rights issue were approximately
HK$276.5 million. The rights issue was made for the purposes
1.8 million (RMB170.0 million) for
the contribution of funding in a joint venture company to operate
a calcium carbonate business (the “GCC Business Plan”), in
which approximately HK$149.2 million (RMB132.2 million) was
apportioned tfo the setup of a manufacturing building (including

of (i) approximately HK$19

property, plant and equipment] and approximately HK$42.6 million
(RMB37.8 million) for the general working capital of the business; {ii]
approximately HK$33.8 million (RMB30.0 million) for the general
working capital of the Group, including but not limited fo the
operating cash used for the daily production of marble and marble
related products, the seflement of outstanding accounts payable
to vendors and the general operating expenses of the Group; and
(iii) the remaining net proceeds of approximately HK$50.9 million
(RMB45.2 million) for the settlement of the potential damages arising
from the litigation in relation to the breach of a written underwriting
agreement on open offer announced by the Company on 14 May
2015.

As at 29 September 2017, the Company resolved to change
the use of the unutilized net proceeds of HK$50.94 million for
the setlement of the potential damages arising from litigation to
(i) purchasing machinery for the replacement of well-worn mining
equipment (approximately HK$15 million); (i) investments in the
marble slabs business (approximately HK$20 million), and (iii)
general working capital (approximately HK$15.94 million). For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29

September 2017
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During FY2021 and FY2020, the net proceeds had been utilized 20218 BUF E k20208 B F & - Fi 15 %A

as follows: FEOBHAMT
Actual use of  Actual use of Unutilized Unutilized
Intended proceeds proceeds  Proceeds as at  Proceeds as at
use of during during 31 December 31 December
proceeds FY2020 FY2021 2020 2021
#2020 ®2021 R2020% 20215
RBRFE BHEE 12A3182 12A3182
HEHELZ FEHELZ HEMALZ EN A
AEAR  RBREABR HBEREAER FEMA ECE S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TEL TET TET
The contribution of funding for TENERBERBRITER
the GCC business
— Setup of manufacturing building -EREERT (BE
(including the property, 0% BERRE)
plant and equipment) 149,150 - - — -
- General working capital of — RS EBE —R
the calcium carbonate business HEES 42,610 547 - 4,430 -
General working capital of the Group AEERN—KEEED
~ Purchasing of machineries “HABARERB
for marble mining business BERN 15,000 - - — -
- Marble slabs business —RERRMES 20,000 31,132 S = =
— Seftlement of litigation — M = 8,421 = — -
- Other general working capital —Ef—-REEESR 49,780 7,071 4,430 — -
276,540 20,045 4,430 4,430 =

HBRAERBER2021MBFERHRSA -
MR ASEEEZZERELEREKS XS
AEBZRRMEEF S ERFEARAREEZ
MESEBOASRBEFEIL D AR EARN
SE - RELEESNBESTKRAMRA -

The proceeds from the rights issue have been fully utilized during
FY2021. As the Group was unable to materialize the original GCC
Business Plan, the Group resolved and ratified the reallocation of
part of the net proceeds originally intended for the GCC business
fo meet the on-going needs and shortfalls required for the general
working capital of the Group.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHREIRBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zheng Yonghui (Ef7kfE ) , aged 53, has been an executive
director of the Company since @ April 2019. Mr. Zheng has over
20 vears of global business experience around many regions,
including Greater China, Asia and Europe. He has accumulated
rich experience in international trade and business management.

Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Weijun (3R & &) ("Mr. Zhang”), aged 63, has been
an executfive director of the Company since 24 December 2015.
Mr. Zhang has around 10 years of experience in the mining indusfry
and is currently a vice president of a mining company in the PRC.

Zhang Cuiwei

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (582 7%) ("Ms. Zhang"), aged 53, has been
an executfive director of the Company since 1 January 2016 and
was appoinfed as a member of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 12
September 2018. Ms. Zhang graduated in Foreign languages
and Lliterature from Jilin University of the PRC. Ms. Zhang has about
20 years of experience in corporafe management, personnel and
administration affairs.

Zhang Mian

Mr. Zhang Mian (58 %), aged 64, has been an executive
director of the Company since 4 February 2019. Mr. Zhang Mian
graduated from South China Normal University in China and has
many vyears of experience in journalism and communication and
media management. He has worked in one of the most influential
mainstream newspaper groups in South China. He has also
accumulated rich experience in business management in the fields of
construction, decoration engineering, packaging and printing, new
material development and application.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Yang Ruimin

Mr. Yang Ruimin (#5858%0) ["Mr. Yang”), aged 38, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company, chairman
of Nomination Committee, a member of Audit Committee and
a member of Remuneration Committee since 11 June 2018.
Mr. Yang holds a bachelor degree in Economic and Administrative
Management from PLA Nanjing Political College (H# B A R E#
EERBUAZRL) . M. Yang has over 10 years of experience in
human resource management in different industries.
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Andreas Varianos

Mr. Andreas Varianos, aged 43, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company and chairman of Audit Committee
since 17 July 2020. Mr. Varianos has over 13 years of experience
in corporate and financial services in Cyprus. Mr. Varianos holds a
bachelor of science degree in Business Administration (Accounting
and Finance) from the American College of Greece in Athens,
Greece. Since 2013, Mr. Varianos has been a Qualified ACCA
Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom. He previously worked as a Senior Auditor
for KPMG Cyprus from 2007 to 2010. He also worked as a
director of InterTaxAudit Auditors and Tax Consultants Limited from
2010 to 2017. He is currently the Founder and Managing Partner
of Santabros Enterprises Limited (Edge Development Group) and
the Founder and Managing Director of AsusPlus Auditors and Tax
Consultants Limited since 2017. Mr. Varianos was appointed as a
director of G Entertainment Group Plc. on 30 April 2019, a Cyprus-
based holding company listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange,
which is currently being dissolved by way of creditor's voluntary
winding up.

Pei Bing

Ms. Pei Bing, aged 51, has over 14 vyears of business experience
working in the restaurant and franchising industry with the All
Group, one of the largest restaurant franchising companies in
Ireland. Ms. Pei holds a Diploma in Business Studies from the
Institute of Commercial Management, a professional body for
Commercial and Business Development Managers headquartered in
Ringwood, Hampshire, England.
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EXEiIfHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company sirives fo attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhance the
shareholders” value.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “listing Rules”) for
FY2021 except for a deviation from code provisions A.2.1, A.1.8
and E.1.2 of CG Code.

Deviation from A.2.1 of the CG Code

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer (the
"CEQ") are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibility, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its
responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company's sirategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The division of responsibilities between
the chairman and the chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. During FY2021, no officer carried
the title of CEO and no chairman was appointed by the Board,
save to chair Board meetings. The duties of the CEO are undertaken
by executive directors of the Company while the independent board
members assume the role and responsibility of chairman of the
Board to ensure that the board is effective setting the Company's
direction and implementing strategy. The Board is of the view that
there is a sufficient balance of power but plans to strengthen the
management within the Company by appointing a Chairman and

CEO of the Company in the second quarter of 2022.
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Deviation from A.1.8 of the CG Code

Under code provision of A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against the Directors. Currently, the Company does not have
insurance cover in this respect as the Board believes that, with
the current infernal control system and the close supervision of the
management, the Director’s risk of being sued or getting involved in
litigation in their capacity as a director of the Company is relatively
low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for insurance
cover from time to time.

Deviation from E.1.2 of the CG Code

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting. The chairman of
the board should also invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees [as appropriate) to attend.
In their absence, the chairman should invite another member of the
committee or failing this their duly appointed delegates to attend.
During FY2021, only Ms. Zhang Cuiwei attended the annual
general meeting as other members of the Board had other business
commitments. The Board is aware of this non-compliance and
will continue to bring the importance of attending annual general
meetings to the aftention of each committee chairman and its

members.

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities tfransactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company
(the “Board” or "Directors”), all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
fransaction throughout the year ended 31 December 2021,

22 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(1)

Composition of the Board

The Board has maintained a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment.
The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Each Director of
the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her
caliber, experience, professional qualification and potential
fo contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and its
businesses.

The composition of the Board was set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Ruimin
Mr. Andreas Varianos
Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed
[resigned on 2 September 2021)
Ms. Pei Bing (appointed on 1 December 2021)

During FY2021, to the best knowledge of the Company, there
was no financial, business or family relationship among the
members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-aws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition fo the
existing Board shall hold office on|y until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re election. At each annual general meefing, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third but not less than one-third] shall refire from office by
rotation. Each director shall retire at least once every three
years.
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The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 19 to 20 of this
annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs")
was appointed for a term of three years, subject to re-election
by rotation at least once every three years. The re-election
of each of these INEDs who has served on the Board for
more than nine years is subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

The Company received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Board has
reviewed the independent non-executive Directors and
considered that all of them are independent by meeting the
independence criteria in Rule 3.13 of the listing Rules.

Mr. Zheng Yonghui, who took chair of the Board Meeting held
on 29 March 2021, met with the INEDs without the presence
of other Directors.

Mr. Mehmet Ahmed resigned as an INED on 2 September
2021. Since then, the Company only had two independent
non-executive Director left on the Board until the appointment
of Ms. Pei Bing on 1 December 2021. The Company did not
comply with the requirements under Rule 3.10 (1) of the Listing
Rules until the appointment of Ms. Pei Bing.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company complied with
requirements under Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule
3.10A of the Llisting Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2021.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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() Attendance of Directors at the board meeting

and general meeting

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Directors can
aftend @ meeting in person or by means of such telephone,
electronic or other communication facilities, which enable
all persons participating in the meefing to communicate with
each other simultaneously and instantaneously in accordance
with the Byedlaws. The company secretary of the Company
(the “"Company Secretary”) will assist the chairman of the
Board and/or executive Director to prepare the agenda of
the meeting and each Director may request fo include any
matters in the agenda for the regular Board meefings. All
Directors may seek the advice and services of the Company
Secrefary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. All directors will also be provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and
upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company's expense. All minutes of Board meefings
were recorded in sufficient detail, including matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board and are open for
inspection by Directors.

The By-laws confain provisions requiring Directors fo abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving fransactions in which such Direcfors or any of
their associates have a material interest.
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There were 5 board meetings and 1 general meeting held
during FY2021. The attendance of each Director at the board
meetfings and general meeting is set out below:

R2021MBFREAR RAB B BTS5R
EEZ22a3RIABRRARE -BREFHE
E=Z2eB MBERARENREHEIINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEBITEERE

Director Board meeting  General meeting
=) EEEgE BRAXE
Mr. Zheng Yonghui Bk E % A 5/5 0/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REB L 5/5 1/1
Mr. Zhang Weijun REFLE 5/5 0/1
Mr. Zhang Mian R4 3/5 0/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin ST E 2/5 0/1
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 4t 4 2/5 0/1
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed (resigned on Mehmet Ahmed 5t 4

2 Seplember 2021 (R202149 A28 B E) 4/4 0/1
Ms. Pei Bing (appointed on Fhzt

1 December 2021) (R2021F12A 1 HEZT) 0/0 0/0

The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions,
internal control, risk management and performances. The
principal functions of the Board is to (1) convene general
meefings and report the Board’s work at general meetings;
(2) implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders
in general meetings; (3] consider and approve strafegies,
financial objectives, annual budget, investment proposals of
the Group; [4) formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(5) assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group; and (6] exercise other powers, functions and
duties conferred by the shareholders in general meeting. It is
the responsibiht\/ of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company's
circumstances and fo ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company's corporate governance
objectives.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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During FY2021, the Board performed the above-mentioned
corporafe governance funcfions by reviewing the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance and
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The day-fo-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the executive Directors
and these senior management, who fulfill their duties within
their scope of authority and responsibility. Monthly updates
are provided by the board from the Chief Financial Officer,
giving them a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance fo enable the members of the Board
to discharge their duties. Divisional heads are responsible for
different aspects of the businesses. Major functions delegated
fo management include preparation of annual and interim
results; execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted
by the Board; implementation of adequate risk management
and internal control systems; and compliance with the relevant
statutory requirements. The functions and power that are so
delegated are reviewed periodically by the Company to
ensure that they remain appropriate.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the company
secretary of the Company, with a view fo ensuring that the
Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations
are followed. Each director is also able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making such request to the Board.

The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsibilities by the Board for the day-to-day management of
the Group and is accountable to the Board. The management
team has overall responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Group for the approval
of the Board and is also responsible for the supervision and
execution of the plans of the Group. The delegated functions
and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
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(V) Board Diversity Policy

The Board has a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board fo enhance its operating results and quality of
its performance.

With a view to achieving o sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. A truly diverse Board will include and make
good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other qualities of the
Directors. These differences will be considered in determining
the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of the
Directors are made on meritocracy, and will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight
Directors, amongst them, three are Independent Non-executive
Directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterized by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board's composition,
the nomination committee of the Company [the “Nomination
Committee”) considered that the requirements of the Board
Diversity Policy had been met.

28  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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(VI) Continuous professional development of the (V) EERHEEXRR

Directors

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments EEBFEREREBEEBREIZ KRR
to or updates on relevant laws, rules and regulations. In EREMEEI R EF N KRB E
addition, the Company encourages the Directors to enroll FHRERLTRA - BFEIAGH KA
in o wide range of professional development courses and XERERAENTRBELNEEXER
seminars relating fo the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies RERANE UAEREAFERTH
Ordinance and corporate governance practices so that HEAABEERE - ARABEFTERE
they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge and ERHEARETEHEI UEREEER
skills. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and RETARAUNRPEERERNKINATE °

regular training to the Directors o ensure that they are kept
abreast with the latest requirements under the Listing Rules and
corporate governance practices.

Directors Type of continuous professional development programmes
BEEHA RFEEXBREER
Mr. Zheng Yonghui B ok R 5 A4 B
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REBR T B
Mr. Zhang Weijun REERE B
Mr. Zhang Mian REE B
Mr. Yang Ruimin B L B
M:r. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos 5t 4 A+B
Ms. Pei Bing XLt B
Notes: B £k

A: attending seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relevant to the A HFEHEEBRESFBEEBENHIE wRiE/

business or directors’ duties IS &3
B: reading regulatory updates B: HESMEEEH
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BOARD COMMITTEES

(1)
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Audit Committee

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company
has been established by the Board with specific written terms
of reference and all members of the Audit Commitiee are

INEDs.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the primary duties of the audit committee of the Company
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor,
the review of the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting and the oversight of infernal
control procedures of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Andreas Varianos, Mr. Yang Ruimin
and Ms. Pei Bing. Mr. Andreas Varianos is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

During FY2021, the Audit Commitiee held 2 meetings fo,
including but not limited to, 1) review the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2020, 2] review the inferim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 before their submission
to the Board and monitored the integrity of such financial
statements, 3) review and assess the auditor's independence
or objective in relation to the provision of non-audit services;
4) review the Compony's financial positions, internal control
and risk management systems and give suggestions fo the
Board and 5] meet with independent auditor to discuss the
nature scope of the audit and the areas of concem; 6] meet
with the independent auditor to discuss the nature and scope
of the audit and areas of concern on the financial statements;
7) review the internal control and risk management systems
based on a report prepared by an external advisory firm..
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The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of
the members of the Audit Committee at the audit committee
meeting are sef out below:

B ZBEEeMAKKLEFZEEKEH
FEAZESERNAEHEIMT :

Attendance/
Members of Audit Committee Number of meeting
EFEEENE HE BITEERHY
Mr. Andreas Varianos ([Chairman) Andreas Varianos £ & (£ /%) 2/2
Mr. Yang Ruimin ke kel 1/2
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed (resigned on Mehmet Ahmed 5 4
2 September 2021) (FR2021F9 A 2H & 1) 2/2
Ms. Pei Bing (appointed on Eaxt
1 December 2021) (R2021F12A 1 BEZF) 0/0

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and the senior management of the Group, review
performance-based remuneration and ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration.

As at the dafe of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Ms. Pei Bing and Mr. Yang
Ruimin, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Ms. Pei Bing is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During FY2021, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meefings
fo approve and review the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the management of the Company.
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The Remuneration Committee has recommended the
remuneration packages on individual executive Directors and
senior management for the Board's approval, in compliance

with B.1.2 (c](i) of CG Code.

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant fo Appendix 16 to the Llisting Rules are set out in
Notes 13(a) and 13(b) respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee and
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the remuneration committee meeting are set out below:

FHNZESCRENRTESTRSRE
EEAENFHNFBREIEZ HES
g E UREEEGTREB.1.2(c)
(i) fig& o

RELTRAMETNETHRENE
MEEWNNAERSFHEENF
BORMEREEHBRRME3(al &
13(b) °

Nz EemEAREFHEZE@XE R
FHFWEZESERNABEINMT :

Attendance/
Members of Remuneration Committee Number of meeting
FMESERE HEBITEBRRE
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed (Chairman) Mehmet Ahmed 504 (£ /&)

[resigned on 2 September 2021) (R20215E9H2B B ) 1/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin Bk S 1/2
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei KRB 2/2
Ms. Pei Bing (Chairman) (appointed on FERIZE (FE)

2 December 2021) (R2021F12A1REZE) 0/0

() Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee of the Company has been
established by the Board with specific written terms of
reference The Nomination Committee has also formulated
and adopted its Nomination Policy, a summary of which is
disclosed in "Nomination Policy" below.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. Details of the
authority and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at the dafe of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises two INED, namely Mr. Yang Ruimin and Ms. Pei
Bing, and one executive Director, namely Ms. Zhang
Cuiwei. Mr. Yang Ruimin is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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The Nomination Committee reviews the composition of the
Board from the diversified angles up to the dafe of this Report
and summarized as follows:

BEAREAM REZBEELE T
AERTEESNMAR BdmT:

No. of Directors

EEAY
Gender: 1R
Male 5 4
Female g <
Ethnicity: B 48 -
Chinese i 6
Cypriot ZEH % A 1
Age Group: FicA R
31-40 31-408% 1
41-50 41-505% 1
51-60 51-605% 3
61-70 61-70%% 2
length of Service [year): RISEFR (F) :
1-10 1-10%F 7

For the purpose of implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1. The Company should comply with the requirements on
board composition in the Listing Rules from time to time,
including ensuring that there is no single gender board
(with a 3-year fransition period).

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors
should represent af least one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

4. At least one Director should have professional expertise
or experience in the industry in which the Group

operates ifs business.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives under the
Board Diversity Policy for FY2021.

FEESAREEZERERAF

RERESFEXREZTILRE CSRH
ATAIGERREZ:

1. ARREBTLETRATNKEBE
FRHARNATE BRBREFE
VHBE-—MHEHBER(F=FBE
#) -

2. BUFRTEFAMALEEFEN
BABEL=5H2—-

3. BL-—BBUFNTEFVLAAB
HENBEXER ARBEENEG
AAHEBNM B EEER

4. ELREFRABLAKERER
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During FY2021, the Nomination Committee held 2 meefings
fo nominate and make recommendation of candidates for
Directors and review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and concluded that members of the Board have
possessed the expertise and independence to carry out the
Board's functions and responsibilifies.

Ms. Pei Bing was nominated according to the Nomination
Policy during FY2021. The Nomination Committee put
forward Ms. Pei Bing as a candidate nominated by Mr. Zheng
Yonghui, given her experience in the food and beverage
industry and the gender diversity she could bring fo the Board.
After evaluating Ms. Pei Bing's suitability for developing the
Company's new virtual restaurant business at a nomination
committee meetfing, an unanimous resolution was passed
fo recommend Ms. Pei Bing as an INED candidate for the
Board's approval. The Board passed a unanimous resolution
fo appoint Ms. Pei Bing as an INED. An induction was also

R2021MBFEER - REZEEEHETT
QREBZUARBESREARMELIARER
HEEEZULRITEETENRE AR
MK TRREFEREAFEIEEMN
BEBILGNABRBTESTENRERE
o

REBRABE BREZETR2021MBEF
FERER -ZEREEZXIRERENK
BLEAREEETRNMLNZ T
RAZEERZHEF /BB KELLE
RANKEA- RREEZBEEEH LT
HERELLIRBRARBFRLEER
BHEAMR REZEE - ZEBR
BAREBERELULTRBIUFATESK
BA-AHEZSHAE-EETS ZUBBE
REBRRERERLLIRBIUNFRITES -
AReEEBETAZEZTREEAR

provided to Ms. Pei Bing by the Company’s legal advisor. Bl e
Attendance/

Members of Nomination Committee Number of meeting
REZEERE HEBOEERE
Mr. Yang Ruimin (Chairman) BT E (FE) 1/2
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed (resigned on Mehmet Ahmed 5 4

2 September 2021) (R2021F9 A 2H B 1) 1/1
Ms. Pei Bing (appointed on EELL

1 December 2021) (R2021F12R1REZE) 0/0
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei KRB L 2/2
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) on

1 January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as follows:

1. Objective

1.1

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable
candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as directors
of the Company at general meetings or appoint him/her
to fill casual vacancies.

1.2 The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination Committee

and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate fo the requirements of the Group's business
development.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

The facfors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate.

*  Quadlifications and experience in the relevant
industries in which the Company's business is
involved or is going to be involved;

e Commitment in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

®  Reputation for integrity; and

e Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

FEESAREEZERERAF

4 BUR
AEEPN2019F]1 A1 8 KM~ ARERE
(MREBR]) -RBRANBERELNT -

1. B®
1.1

2. WERZ

2.1

REZBERAEFTSRAGEN
REAANBEERE ARBRAEH
ERARALEIARAESTXZ
E6 B A £ DAE 7 B B 22 R (7 AR
REtHEBZZ-

REBRREPRELLZEGREEFS
BREFSAERE BREAAAS
T T EERTE e AEE
EBERONENR-

EFEESHREANSEMLER R
FEZEEBB2ETXMIIRAE-
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EFHHEBITENEES RER:

° BAKRBEEBEEHEIN
R

Y

oy

BE R
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s EEEXITEMZRl BRE
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3. Nomination Procedures
3.1 The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members
([if any) for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Commitlee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members;

3.2 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the
Company. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates to provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary;

3.3 The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the selection
criteria stated above and make recommendation(s) to the
Board'’s consideration and approval;

3.4 In the case of the reelection of a director at the general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution of the directors to the Company and
their services, their participation and performance within
the Board, and whether such director still meets the
needs to complement the Company's corporate strategy.

4 Review of the Nomination Policy

4.1 The Board will review the Nomination Policy from fime

to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate governance
policy of the Company. During the last financial year, at its board
meefing to approve the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, the Board monitored the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management,
reviewed the Group's policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. At the same meeting, the Board
also reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the Company's
2020 Annual Report. The Board also reviewed its code of conduct
applicable to employees and directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
financial statements for each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. The Company deploys appropriate
and sufficient resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The Direcfors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
fo evenfs or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects. The inferim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a fimely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

FEESAREEZERERAF

1 S IR Bk e
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The remuneration paid or payable for the audit and non-audit
services provided for FY2021 to Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Elite

Partners”) is set out below:

Services rendered

& i 7 T

B2021 B HERUMBH RIEBHRY
MENXENETEEEATEHRARD
AALTERDOFHRIIMT

Fee paid/payable

1240 R et EFER
RMB'000

ARET T

Audit of financial statements BTSSR K 415
Other non-audit services H M IEEF R 134
549

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and infernal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on a bi-annual basis. The
Audit Committee considers the adequacy of resource, qualifications
and experience and training of staff and external advisor of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group's assets and stakeholder’s inferest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures to
respond fo the risks resulting from significant changes fo the business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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The management would identify the risks associated with the
business of the Group by considering both internal and external
factors and events which include political, economic, technology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritized based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opporfunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follows:

- Risk refention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimize the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and internal control system are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For FY2021, the Group engaged an external advisory firm fo
perform the review on the risk management policy and procedures
and carry out the internal audit function fo ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control system of
the Group. The external advisory firm is independent of the Group's
daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management
and infernal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs
and tests of operational effectiveness of the procedures, systems
and confrols established by the Group including various operational
cycles of the Group such as the revenue and receipts, purchase
and payments, project management, fixed assets and capital
expenditure management, financial reporting and industrial safety
and environmental protection. No significant deficiency and
weakness of the internal control system that may affect the financial,
operational and compliance confrols and risk management funcfions
were identified by the external advisory firm for FY2021.
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Based on the review by the external advisory firm, the Board
reached the conclusion that the risk management and internal control
system and procedures of the Group were effective and adequate.
Such systems, however, are designed to only manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Group's business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against any material misstatement or loss.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee ("Mr. Cheung”] is the company secrefary
of the Company. He is an employee of the Company and has
adequate knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as the
company secrefary of the Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for

FY2021.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Company has established and maintained the procedures and
internal controls for the of inside information. The Company has
adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
fransactions. Other employees of the Group who are likely to being
in possession of inside information of the Company are also subject
to the same dealing restrictions. The Group also strictly prohibits
the Directors from the unauthorized use of confidential or inside
information fo the advantage of himself or others. The Company
promptly identifies, assesses and escalates any inside information
and any information which may potenfio”y constitute inside
information to the Board, which decides the need for disclosure.
Inside information and other information which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Llisting Rules will be announced on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company in due
course.
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SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS

(1)

(1)

(I11)

Shareholders convene an special general
meeting

Pursuant to the Byedaws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, any one or more registered shareholders holding af
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the voting right
at general meefings of the Company (the “Requisitionists”)
shall, at all times, have the right, by written requisition that
must be signed by the Requisitionists to the Board deposited
at the registered office of the Company fo require a special
general meeting fo be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such meeting
shall be held within three months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meetfing, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionists by reason of the failure
of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

Procedure by which shareholders may put
forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should send their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meeting of the Company.

Shareholders put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions under the Company's Byelaws or the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as director.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to
convene a special general meefing for any business specified
in such writtlen requisition.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

(1)

(i)

(I11)

42

Constitutional documents
The Company confirmed that there has been no change in the
Company’'s memorandum of associations and the Bye-laws

during FY2021.

Communication with shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
timely and effective communication with the shareholders
and the investors. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with the investors is the key to establish
investor's confidence and to affract new investors. Therefore,
the Group s committed to maintaining a high degree of
fransparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group by the publication of annual report, interim
reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all such documents on the Company’s website at
www.kingstonemining.com. The Directors and the Board
committee members are available fo answer questions at
annual general meeting of the Company.

Dividend policy

The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends on 1 January 2019. It aims fo enhance the
enhancing fransparency of the Company and facilitate its
shareholders and the potential investors of the Company to
make informed investment decisions relating to the Company.
The Board will review the dividend policy from time to fime.
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While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in
the future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will
depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

[a)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

[b)  the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

[c] retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(d)  the Group's liquidity position;

le) the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(ff  any other factors that the board of directors of the
Company deems relevant.

Shareholders will be enfitled fo receive such dividends pro
rata according fo the amounts paid up or credited as paid
up on the shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitied under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any
dividend in the amount set out in any of the plans or at all.
The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.
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RiR - HHBKRE)

a¥hdE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The obijective of this Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
Report is to highlight the Group's ESG performance for the purpose
of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group's ESG
concepts and practices in achieving sustainable development for
the future. The overseas virtual restaurant business had only been
under the management of the Group since late last year (December
2021), hence the majority of the data required for ESG disclosure
were not available.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and China during the
period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting

Period”] relating to the overall performance, strategies,
measures and commitments of four aspects: quality of working

risks,

environment, environmental profection, operating practices and
community participation.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the
Main Board Listing Rules. An assessment on the applicability and

materiality of the relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”) under
the ESG Reporting Guide had been conducted.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES
The following principles are adopted in the Report:

*  Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in the Report. A materiality
assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues
with results approved by the Board.

methodologies and
assumptions used to prepare the quantitative information is
disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided
with narrative and comparative figures, where possible.

° Quantitative: The relevant standards,

e  Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in the Report, unless otherwise

specified, to allow for meaningful comparisons.

The information is presented without the
inappropriate use of selections, omissions or other forms of

o Balance:

manipulation that would influence a decision or judgment by
the reader.
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GOVERNANCE ON ESG ASPECTS

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's ESG strategy
and reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the Group's ESG-related risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems are in place. Our Management is delegated the
responsibility of coordinating the implementation of the Group's
environment, employment and service quality assurance policies.

The Board leads and provides direction to Management
by instituting ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their
implementation and monitoring ESG performance. The Board
continues to explore ways to further strengthen the ESG governance
of the Group. The Board reviews ESG affairs regularly, including
environmental protection, employment and labour practices,
operating practices, and community investment, and implements
appropriate measures to enhance the ESG performance of the

Group.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal fo strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
info maintaining close communication with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to government and regulatory authorities,
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, and the general
public. We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in
formulating our businesses and ESG strategies by utilizing diversified
engagement methods and communication channels, shown as

RiR - HERE]
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Al EX L PN Y
BMESAHNEEBATRESEMER LR
B HEMEARAEEMNRBEERL - BTHELR
SENAHEERAFEZNERRA KM —EZ
DEFEANZHEBALIREZUER EF
BEETREABRNREEKE REX -ES -
EP HEBNAR -KMBEBER TR
METH2EFAREBRE THTED
KBURRE e hEARBREEN &=
HEATNEE-

below.
Stakeholders Communication channels
MBEHBEAL BERE
Government and regulatory organizations e Announcement and other regulatory reports
BT & BB S s DNERHMEERS
Shareholders and investors e Information disclosed on the HKEX website and corporate website
BRRRIREH o REERFTHEUE R A RBILKENE R
e Annual general meeting and other shareholders’ meefings
e REBFASLEMERRARS
Employees e Employee performance evaluation
{=3=] s [EEBEMERZ
e Onthesjob fraining
o BRI
e Internal email
e RAHER
Customer e Corporafe website
BP e AU
Community e Industry events
o e TEED
e Corporate social responsibility activities

s HEHEEMED
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the reporting period, the Group has evaluated a number
of environmental, social and operating items and assessed their
imporfance to stakeholders and the Group through various channels.
This assessment helps to ensure that the Group's business objectives
and development direction satisfy the stakeholders” expectations and
requirements. The Group's and stakeholders” matters of concern are
listed out in the following materiality matrix:
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Sl Internal assessment (impact on business) ENCEL
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Al:  Environmental B1: Employment
R &=
A2:  Use of resources B2: Health and safety
BRER REERE
A3:  The environment and natural resource B3: Development and training
RERBARER R RIE
A4:  Climate change B4: Labour standards
RixE L & TR
B5: Supply chain management
HrEEEe
B6: Product responsibility
EmAE
B7: Anti-corruption
k&R
B8: Community investment
Pad R
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ENVIRONMENTAL

The Zhangjiaba Mine (“the Mine") located at Zhenjiang Village,
Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan Province, China, is
subject to various PRC environmental protection laws and regulations
re|ofing to a broad range of environmental profection matters, such
as land rehabilitation, water and soil preservation, noise control and
discharge of wastewater and pollutants. It is the Group's policy to
ensure the mining activities carried out by the authorized miner are
in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

Emissions

Air Emission and greenhouse gas emission

During the year of 2021, the mining operations were carried out by
an authorized miner. The management of the Group (“Management”)
considers that the emissions and waste generated by the Group are
insignificant. The Group is concerned about the adverse effect of the
use of fuel on the environment and promotes carpooling wherever
possible and using teleconference or video conference in place of
facetoface meetings. The major air emissions during the year are
mainly generated from the use of motor vehicles for staff to and from
the mine site and the urban area. During the process of combustion
of fuels, other air pollutants, such as nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides
and particulate matter are also produced.

The Group will continve to seek ways to reduce CO, emissions
and land contamination such as recommending employees fo use
environmental friendly methods for transporfation to and from work
and formulate award policies for energy conversation and emission
reduction.

RIR-HBREISHRS
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Unit 2021 2020
Ry 20214 20204
Air emissions
B8 SR HE
Nitrogen oxides kg 29.7 5
AALD Fr
Sulphur oxides kg 0.17 0.02
maty Fr
Respiratory suspended particles kg 2.2 0.4
AR ABERLF Fr
Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHER
Scope 1 — Fuel combustion Ton 27.7 3
IS — R R g
Scope 2 - Electricity consumption Ton 11.6 13
HE2—FNEM M8
Total GHG emissions Ton 39.3 16
BERBHNEE i
Emission intensity Ton/Million 0.5 0.2
of revenue
PR E W, B &ITEA
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Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes production

No hazardous waste was produced during the daily office
operation. The general office waste was mainly attributed to
domestic wastes. The Group has formulated a guideline for waste
classification, reduction, reuse, recycling and disposal. Paper is one
of the major non-hazardous wastes generated in the offices. The
Group adopted the following practices to reduce paper waste at

source, so to reduce the production of non-hazardous waste:
®  Print only when needed and encourage duplex printing; and

®  Reuse single-sided used papers, envelopes, folders and

carfons in the office.

Target settings

The major source of emissions is from the combustion of pefrol and
the use of electricity. With the implementation of energy-saving
measures, the Group aims to maintain the GHG emission intensity at
about 0.5 Ton per million of revenue in the next five years.

Compliance of laws and regulations

The Group constantly updated itself with the local legislation and
standards for environmental protection and assessed whether these
legislations and standards are related to the business of the Group
and the Group's compliance status.

During the year, the Group strictly complies with the relevant nafional
environmental laws and regulations, including but not limited fo the

followings:
e the Environmental Protection law of the People's Republic of
China

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Water Pollution

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Confrol of Atmospheric Pollution

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, and

e the law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution.
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Use of resources

The Group ufilizes resources effectively and responsibly to achieve
susfainable development. The Group encourages staff to adopt
environmentally responsible habits in their day to day activities,
and the Group constantly measures waste production, and seeks fo
promote the use of recyclable materials.

Water

Water services are not available in our offices in Zhuhai, China
and Hong Kong. Water used in the mine are exiracted from
groundwater. Therefore, dafa on water consumption is not available.

The Group did not have problems in seeking appropriate water
resources. The existing supply of water resources satisfies the
Group's needs in ferms of volume, quality of water and the
guarantee of water supply facilifies.

Packaging materials

Packaging materials are not necessary for our marble slags and
marble slabs, hence no packaging materials are consumed in this
regard.

The following consumption data were recorded in the year ended

31 December 2021 and 2020:

RIR-HBREISHRS

BRMEH
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B 220215 R2020F12A31 B L FE M H
REEWT:

Resources Unit 2021 2020
&REn k= X1v2 20214 20204
Petrol kWh 118,683 159,845
i T FL B

Diesel kWh 1,693 92,283
S8 TR

Electricity kWh 21,009 19,039
B TR

Total energy consumption kWh 141,385 271,167
BERBFES T ELE

Energy consumption intensity kWh per million of revenue 1,904 3,727
ERERERE FEEB&ITKRA

The Group is committed to upholding a high environmental
standards in order to promote environmental friendliness. Throughout
the Group, the following actions have been implemented to reduce
energy consumption:

= maintain the optional room temperature at 26° C;
= switch off idle electrical appliances and lightings; and

- carpooling arrangement for employees in the Mine.
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Environment and natural resources

As mining operators, the Group is in the business of exfracting
natural resources at the Zhangjiaba Mine. The Management
believes every practicable effort has been made to ensure their
collateral impact on the surrounding environment is kept fo a
minimum. Right at the planning stage of the excavation, the location
is sef to be outside the urban planning area and does not involve
designated areas such as nature reserves, scenic spots and cultural
relics (under preservation protection]. Further, there is no farmland
located near the mining sites.

It is the firm belief of the Management that both the effective and
efficient use of energy and due care to the environment is vital for
the sustainable development of the Group. Hence the Group closely
monitors and reviews the relevant data from time fo time, minimizing
the negative effect on the environment and maximizing its business
development and operation at the same time.

As a marble production enterprise, the Company strictly complies
with the Environmental Impact Assessment Llaw of the People’s
Republic of China, the Water and Soil Conservation law of the
People's Republic of China, the Provisions on Land Reclamation and
other relevant regulations and formulated an environmental impact
assessment report and a water and soil conservation plan targeting
water and soil loss and ecological damage, so as to avoid
impacting fo local plant and animal communities.

The mining and production of minerals have long been regarded
as one of the key stakeholders in the matter of climate change
and sustainability. With due regard to our current and infended
scale of excavation, the management team had long been mindful
of the potential and implied impact of our excavation in terms
of sustainability. Since the early stage of our current operations,
we have involved local professionals and have been in constant
consuliation regarding how we can best reduce our impact and
explore possible means to bring about positive impacts. From
the excavation method, the balance between the use of heavy
machinery and explosives, choices of location and scale of
excavation, our feams have embedded their due care towards their
impact on the sustoinobihf\/ of the local environment. The effect of
climate change has had a more evident impact on the timing of our
mining excavation, given our current scale and extending our current

capacity for flexibility could cater for these effects.
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Climate change

We take a holistic view on the impact, risk and associated potentials
associated with climate change and sustainability. In our industry,
we regard ourselves as a parficipant in these issues with due regard
fo our scale of operation and the degree of participation in the
product design, usage and climate appropriateness. Due diligence
in terms of adhering to the ideals and principles of sustainability had
been embedded in our sourcing process, including being mindful
of the preceding climate changes, such as longer seasons and
sharper rises and falls in average temperatures. Through constant
communication, regular negotiations and reviews with our business
counterparts and customers, our teams sfrive to meet the objectives
set forth by our Board. Our products are required to meet emerging
industry needs and frends, and our design teams remain robust and
adaptive to the current weather patterns. These requirements were
subject to both national and customer trends and needs. We believe
our effort contributes positively to sustainability and is efficient in the
overall management of climate risks.

SOCIAL

The system covers recruitment, rank management, remuneration,
fraining, confidentiality and other areas. The Group ensures
employees are clear about their own rights and responsibilities as
they will comply with the system and carry out their work legally in
order to safeguard the inferest of both parties.

Employment

Although the Group has faced challenges from a downtrend
economic environment, the staff is willing 1o work with the Group
to tackle these unfavourable, adverse conditions. The Group has
established a policy to ensure that the rights of each staff member
are protected no matter the circumstances. The employment
contract of the Group specifies the terms including compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare for our staff. Every stoff member of the Group has signed an
employment confract with the Group. The promotion policies of the
Group are based on the performance of the relevant staff and their
position on an annual basis.
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Working hours, rest periods and leave paid

Five-day work arrangement is adopted to facilitate work-ife balance.
In oddition fo all rest days and statutory holidays as specified in
local laws and regulations, employees are entitled to paid annual
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves, marriage leaves and
compassionate leaves. Overfime work compensation is given fo
staff for doing overtime work.

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity

The Group actively promotes a diverse workplace where people
from diverse backgrounds are valued and respected. The Group
adopts equal employment opportunity policies and freats all the
employees equally. Employment, remuneration and promotion are
not under the influence of social identities, such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.

The distribution of all our full-ime staff categorised by gender,
category age group and region are stated as below:

IRIR - BREISHRS
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AEBETAXRITHES A TFERLER
M FE - A RRPIFTANMBERE
BIAEBRBIIN BEAZZGHER ER-
REMR BSREBMMR- BB MNILA]ES I
fHE-

REBRRFEHRE

AEBEREELZ TN IESH TRE
EMAEUEBEERLREE-AKBRMAT
SREREER H2RREE-RRAC - -EE-
FHMEREAARER REK -B&Z HH R
AP Fi - HERE - BUR KB K RAAM R

EHERUPE-

AEBERESRER B RFHKAR R
WEESWDHBERAT

Workforce Staff
distribution turnover rate
ADDE BIRKE
Total number of staff BETHAH 36 25%
Gender =I5
Male B 26 17%
Female pegis 10 44%
Category il
Senior Management =REREE 20 38%
Management EBAR 7 17%
General staff E@RE T Q 10%
Age group i
18-30 18-30m% 4 N/ATER
31-50 31-503% 13 N/A i
51 or above 5T M A £ 19 N/A i A
Region i E
Hong Kong BB 2 0
PRC i 30 14%
United Kingdom R 4 0

FEESAREEZERERAF
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The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with AEBWEBBRFTMNEEER Y TEH KIE
the labour laws and regulations, including, but not limited to the BB - BREER BB EFRAU T EIE

following:

PRC o Labour Contract Law
H (BBERE)
o Labour Law
(B EE)
o Protection of Persons with Disabilities
GEREAREE)
Hong Kong o Employment Ordinance
E (R D)
4 Minimum wage ordinance
(RIETE 5B
o Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
Co& il A TE 2 5 EME D)
° Sex Discrimination Ordinance
CHE Rl AR 171 )
o Familly Status Discrimination Ordinance
(K BE 8 i AR 1601
° Race Discrimination Ordinance
R R B AR 1R 101 )
United Kingdom o Employment Rights Act 1996
R 19065 (RIFHENE)

o National Minimum Wage Act 1998
1998F (BARHKIETEE)

o The Equality Act 2010
2010% (&%)
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Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees have always been the Group's
priority of production. To manage the risks of workplace incidents
and to highlight the importance of health care of their employees,
the Group established various guidelines and policies. These are
included in their Staff Handbook, which is distributed to employees
and enforced by their line management and human resource
department. The majority of our mining workers are employed
through a third party agency. The Group stipulated these agencies
to adhere to similar if not higher standards on the safety and health
care of their employees.

Every worker is required fo follow safety instructions and to receive
training for using the equipment and/or machinery properly. A
safety moniforing mechanism has been established, and staff in each
of production stage has been assigned to monitor the compliance of

RIR-HEBREIBHS

BERZZ
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BANITANEBEETLZE2ERN UEXLERFER
HER KRR ENEYN - AEBD R TR
FPEBEMHTHNSEERBREREIEER
2HAMEFEMR -

safety rules.

Occupational health and safety statistics 2021 2020 2019
BERERZ2HTHE 20215 20204 20194
Number of lost days due to work injury AIEmBANIIERH Nil & Nil Z NilZ
Number of work-related fatalities AITHMAR Nil & Nil & Nil &
Number of work injuries IB%E Nil & Nil & Nil Z

FEESAREEZERERAF
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Development and Training

Management believes that keeping their employees up to date
with emerging trends and standards plays a fundamental role in
business growth. Therefore, the Group encourages employees to
continuously develop and improve their skills through training. The
Group understands that training could facilitate sustainable long-
term deve|opment, which is beneficial for both the Group and the
employees. The Group provides training for directors regarding
the Group's development and essential skills. The Group evaluates
these training programmes from time to time and reviews their
effectiveness. The Group encourages communication between
Management and employees, the Group respects and cares about
employees’ opinions and suggestions.

Training details of director and staff for the year ended 31
December 2021:
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Percentage of

Average training No. of staff staff attended
hours attended attended training training
¥ 2R 28l 2 agd|
35 5 B B BETAH ETESHK
By Gender togiaball
Male S 4 7 27%
Female egid 4 8 30%
By Category g bl
Senior Management SRERRE 6 8 40%
Management BEAR 2 1 14%
General staff LT@ET 8 ] 11%
Labour Standards IR

The Group is committed to upholding the labour rights of staff and
has established a compliant mechanism for staff to report any labour
violations. The Management believes that the Group has complied
with relevant labour standards for the year ended 31 December
2021. It is always the Group's policy to prohibit the employment
of staff members under the legal working age of 18. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, no labour disputes between the
company and its staff have been recorded.
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The Group adhered to the laws and regulations prohibiting child
labour and forced labour, which mainly includes the following:

e Employment Ordinance of HKSAR

e labor law of the PRC

e labor Contract law of the PRC

e law of the PRC on Profection of Minors

®  Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor
e Children and Young Persons Act 1993

Supply Chain Management

The purchasing department will target suppliers with good reputation
in industry, and then make selections through comparing quotes
and negotiation. The Group also performs background checks on
their potential miners according fo effective procedures in order to
prevent fraud during the selection process.

In selecting contractor and equipment suppliers, the Group
takes into account various factors, such as |i) quclity of services;
[ii) contracting costs; [(iii) safety management; and [iv] relevant
qualifications (if applicable). The Group requires contractors to
maintain a high standard of quality for the services provided and
to comply with and have in place adequate occupational health
and safety and environmental protection procedures in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and safety requirements
imposed by the relevant PRC government authorities.

The mining activities were carried out by a reputable local qualified
service provider which complied with government regulations during
the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group does not foresee
its source of supplies to be a potential threat to the group operation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 2 approved
suppliers. All suppliers are from the PRC and were engaged and
evaluated under the aforementioned practice, excluding those
suppliers in the United Kingdom for the operation of the Group's
newly commenced virtual restaurant business, which the Group does
not have sufficient data on.
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Product Responsibility

The quality of products depends on the quality of the mine as the
Group has not further processed the beige marble blocks. The
Group facilitates customer on-site inspection and testing to ensure
the quality of the marble blocks are in line with their expectations.
The Management believes that the Group has complied with
relevant laws and regulations related to the products of the Group.

December 2021

not receive any complaints from customers Obout our products or

During the vyear ended 31 the Company did

services and recall any products for safety and health reasons.

Data privacy

Cusfomer information is collected only when it is necessary. We will
continuously conduct regular reviews on our data management and
provide fraining fo our employees.

Intellectual property rights
As at 31 December 2021
of the Company logo in Hong Kong. The Group regularly assesses

, the Group has registered 4 trademarks

whether intellectual property rights are being infringed upon by third
parties.

Anti-Corruption and Whistle Blowing

With regards to compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
different regions, the Group maintains a code of business infegrity.
A system with good moral integrity and anti-corruption mechanisms
is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy development of
the Group. The Group also prohibits staff from receiving gifts of
excessive amounts from customers and suppliers. The Group fakes a
zero-tolerance approach to corruption and bribery and is committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business
dealings. Any suspicious transactions are nofified and reported fo
the relevant governing body by the responsible officer.

58  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

RIR-HBREISHRS

EmEE

HRAEBYEE- NI AKEEKREL
BERBERARBUEE AKEHYE
FETHRESRERAA UEARKXKERDH M
ENaZFPEH -BEEERR AEECDEST
BERASEERZEBED KR -

HE2021F12A31BLEFE  AAFLEK
ANEPEABAMEMIRBHEMIKEF T
BEXLRLZ2RBEREMBQERMNIBR -

BERE
BHERLEHELTERETFER - LMK
FESEEERETHETESN RS XRE

E\?IET/\iEL%-M °

AR ERE

R2021F12A31H - AKEE R FE & 4
(ERANN WTTME’JFN o AN 5 B T B AT fE A
EEETRF=TREL-

RESREH
AEBRETRME 2 BEED KRG 45
EBBETN - BYABRIFERHAELR
BESRINEGENASBERARERRERZ
EA-AEBTELETEEP LHEREEK
MEEBRZEm $§lﬁaﬁ&%%ﬁ
RMERBEE BIOINEXZ - RFRBENS
AETEMBENEBRS - BEAEAEBKAMN
ERARXZLRABEEERERS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the year 2021, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations of bribery,
exfortion, Froud, and money |oundering, inc|uding, but not limited to,
the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China; the Anfi-Unfair
Competition Llaw of the People’s Republic of China, the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong and the Bribery Act 2010 of
the United Kingdom that would have a significant impact on the
Group. There are no concluded legal cases regarding corruption
practices brought against the Group or its employees during the
year 2021.

Besides, the Group is committed fo strengthening compliance
training. All directors have completed training on topics related
fo corruption, fraud, conlflicts of interest, cross-border bribery,
backdoor listings, and insider frading, with an average training of
approximately 2 hours.

A whistle-blowing policy has been set up to encourage and allow
employees fo raise concerns about procedural improprieties relating
to financial reporting, compliance and other malpractices. The audit
committee has the overall responsibility for implementing the policy
and has delegated day-to-day responsibility of overseeing such
policy to the chief financial officer of the group. If any employee
reasonably believes and in good faith that there are malpractices
at the workplace, he/she should report immediately to his/her
supervisor within the department. The concerns are then escalated in
writing to the chief financial officer.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Contributing to society is a part of the Group's sustainable
development strategy. The Group is committed to providing career
opportunities to locals and promoting the development of the
community's economy. The Group fully understands and appreciates
the importance of and the need for community investment. One
remarkable aspect fully appreciated by the local community is that
most employees of the mine come from nearby villages. The Group
is committed to developing more community investment opportunities
in its development plans. Through day-to-day contact with community
officials and leaders, the Group explores and examines how the
Croup can engage the community.

During the year of 2021, the Group made a total contribution of
RMB1.6 million to support the villages in the rural area of Sichuan.
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REPURT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE RS

The Board hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the mining, processing and frading of
marble stones and marble-related products. During the year, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statfements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided
in the Chairman Statement on pages ¢ and 8 and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages @ to 18 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021
are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 81 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
are set out in

Group during the year ended 31 December 2021
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not hold any major property development and/or
sale or for investment purposes as at 31 December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021

to the consolidated financial statements.

are set out in note 33
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis fo existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated
stafements of changes in equity on page 84 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company has no reserves available
for distribution to shareholders in accordance with the Company's
Bye-laws (31 December 2020: Nil).

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are sef out in notes 29 and
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years are set out on page 164 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian

Independent Non-executive Directors

M. Yang Ruimin

Mr. Andreas Varianos

Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed (resigned on 2 September 2021)

Ms. Pei Bing [appointed on 1 December 2021)
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RETIREMENT

In accordance with clause of the Company's Byelaws, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall refire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to refirement at an
annual general meetfing af least once every three years. A circular
containing the biographical details of the director candidates
eligible for re-election and the nofice of annual general meeting will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with the Company's Byelaws, Mr. Zheng Yong Hui,
Mr. Zhang Mian, and Ms. Pei Bing will refire by rotation and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Direcfors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS" INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors confirm that in relation
fo their profile, no information is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a ferm of three years from the date of his/her
appointment. Such service contract can be determined by either
party serving at least one month’s notice prior fo the expiry of the
term.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting) has
entered into any service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at general meeting.
Other emoluments will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board with reference to the duties,
responsibilities, performance of the Directors and the results of the
Group. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular review
and monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 13(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are sef out on pages 19 to 20 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and China, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to the profitability of the Group, the Group may also distribute
a discrefionary bonus fo ifs employees as an incenfive for their
contribution to the Group. The Group has adopted a share option
scheme for its employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”] under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Refirement Scheme”) organized by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC, under which the
Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the Retirement Scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other refirement benefits
schemes for the Group's employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 100% (2020: 100%) of total sales of the
Group and the largest customers accounted for 79.0% (2020:
43.1%) of tofal sales of the Group. The five largest customers are all
medium-size enterprises.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's five largest
100% (2020: 100%) of total purchases of
the Group and the largest supplier accounted for 75.1% (2020:
88.9%) of total purchases of the Group.

suppliers accounted for

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
who, fo the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company's issued capital had any interest in the five largest
customers. To the best of knowledge of the Board, it is not aware of
any relationship among the major customers.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021,
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

the inferests and short positions of

Company or any of ifs associated corporations |within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange”] pursuant
fo provisions of Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors or chief executive
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFOJ; (b)
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, fo be entered in
the register referred fo therein; or (c) were required, pursuant fo the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as sef out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were set out
below:
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(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company

Number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each held
FEEEREECOIBIZ2EEREE

(a)

RAEQRTEBERZHER

Percentage of
the issued

share capital

Name of Director ~ Capacity Direct interest  Deemed interest Total interest  of the Company
EARARE BT
BEsps g4 BEEER REEEER mEs BRABZ L
Zheng Yonghui la) Interest of a controlled - 287,097,542 287,997,542 10.17%
corporation (Note)
B oKz (o) T EERER (P sE)
[b) Beneficial owner 138,740,000 - 138,740,000 4.90%
b) BE#mEA A
138,740,000 287,997,542 426,737,542 15.07%
Note: Bt 5 -

The 287,997,542 ordinary shares of the Company were directly owned by
Oasis Tycoon Investments Limited of which all interests are directly controlled by
Mr. Zheng Yonghui.

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company

Details of the interests of the Directors in the share options
of the Company are separately disclosed under the section

headed “Share Option Scheme”.

(c) Short position
As at 31 December 2021,

executive nor their associates had any short positions in any

none of Directors or the chief

shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, at no fime during the period did the
Company or any of ifs holding company or subsidiaries participate
in any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive
lincluding their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to
acquire any interests and short positions of shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation |within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

HE S AREERARA T

(b)

(c)

B £ X PT B ER & ON

% %287,997,542% AR X 7 % i@ ik B Oasis Tycoon
Investments Limited E#£ %4 - i Oasis Tycoon Investments
Limited 2 2 B ¥ &5 /R 56 ) A 55 £ AR HE ) -

RAEQXTAHBERGNER

EEMRARREBREESNFER [
PRiEstE ) —BASITHE-

R A
MR2021F12A31B HEEFHES
TBRABRBREBEARARNRAHEA

AT AB B Z B AR AR 0~ AB A% (D s tE
AR BEAETMAR -

ZAN/NCT D3 /N

BRAANPARE2EEALHE RESFK
ERTTBAB(BHEBREFNESE M KRBI8ER

?ﬁt)THX

Apm S HERMMEBEE (T
EHRBERHEXVE) &R ) 348 B A

T iﬁa’%ﬂ’]&ﬂﬁé\ KRR ©

2021 &R 65



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS E=H8%kS

DIRECTORS” RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2021 were rights
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquires such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors are aware that any
person (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) has
an inferest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 January 2011
(the “2011 Scheme”), which was terminated on 29 June 2020.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting held on 29 June 2020, a new share option scheme (the
"2020 Scheme”) was adopted. A summary of the 2020 Option

Scheme is set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of 2020 Option Scheme is to give the eligible persons
an opportunity o have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate them to optimize their future performonce and efficiency
to the Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions,
fo aftract and refain or otherwise maintain on-going relationships
with such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to
enable the Group fo affract and refain individuals with experience
and obi|it\/ and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Participants of the scheme

The Board may grant options to any person being a director
(including independent non-executive director], employee,
shareholder, supplier, customer, consultant, business partner and
adviser of any member of the Group.
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Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all optfions to be granfed under the 2020 Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the
Listing Date. Subject to as provided in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in a
general meetfing fo refresh the 10% limit (not exceeding 10% of
the shares in issue of the Company as af the date of approval by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting) and grant
options beyond such 10% limit, but the total number of shares which
may be issued under the 2020 Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the number of shares
in issue from time fo time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one eligible person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granfed and to be granted fo that person in any 12-month
period exceeds 1% of the number of shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. The Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in a general meeting to grant options to the eligible
person exceeding 1% of the shares in issue of the Company in
12 month period up to and including the date of such further grant.

Period of the share to be taken up under an option
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
by the eligible person concerned for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer upon payment of HK$ 1.0 for each grant of options.

Minimum holding period of an option

Subject fo the terms and conditions in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Board may determine there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and no performance
target which needs to be achieved by the grantee before the option
can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any partficular option shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion defermine af
the time of grant of the relevant optfion but the subscription price
shall not be less than whichever is highest of (1) the nominal value
of the shares; (2) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and
(3) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of offer.
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Life of 2020 Option Scheme

The 2020 Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the date of adoption. During FY2021, no share
options under the 2020 Scheme were granted, exercised and

lapsed.
Details of outstanding

are as follows:

and movement of share opfions under the

2011 Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2021

20205 B R R BRI PR

T

20208 BBt EI R AR M A HES 105
HEARAR - R2021 M HFE - 2020F B KX
BEFEETHERBRBERD THEIKRM -

HZE2021F12A31BIEFE - 201 1B R
BB TRTENBREREZEGNFBD

As at
As at 1 January Grant during  Lapsed during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Exercise price 2020 the period the period 2020
#2020%
AREA R AH T W2020F1A1H RERE REBAXK 12A31H
Director
=
Zhang Cuiwei 26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 = = 1,731,663
REM 20146 R26H fisEa 1737387
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424,329 = = 2,424,329
2015%1 7120 (RN 1.6497%8 T
Zhang Mian 15 Apiil 2019 note 8 HK$0.1172 28,320,827 - - 28,320,827
£} 2019F4A15H HiEs 0117287
Other
Hity
Other employess 9 June 2014 note 3 HK$1.737 3,290,160 - - 3,290,160
Hitgg 2014%56A9AR (EX] 1737587
26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 = = 1,731,663
2014567261 FisEa 1737587
19 December 2014 note 6 HK$1.634 4,848,657 = (1,731,663 3,116,994
2014128198 W6 1,634
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424,329 = = 2,424,329
2015%1 7128 TN 1.6497%8 T
23 November 2017 note 7 HK$0.0972 47,200,000 - - 47,200,000
2017118238 M7 0.0972% T
15 Apiil 2019 note 8 HK$0.1172 169,924,962 = = 169,924,962
2019F4A15H fi5E8 01172587
Former Direcfor and employee 4 November 2011 nofe 1, 2 HK$7.967 1,350,697 - (1,350,697) -
MEFRER 2011411 A48 BisED 2 796757
263,247 287 S (3,082,360) 260,164,927
Vested at end of period 263,247,287 260,164,927

RBREE
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Note:

1. On 24 May 2012, the Board passed a resolution that these options shall
confinue to be vested and be exercisable until the expiry of the option pericd
regardless of these grantees ceased to be a Director or an employee of the
Company.

2. The options were divided info three tranches exercisable from 4 November

2011, 4 November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to 3 November 2021.

3. The options were exercisable from 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

4. The options were exercisable from 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

5. The options were exercisable from 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
[both dates inclusive).

6. The 692,665 options were exercisable from 19 December 2014 1o 18
December 2024 (both dates inclusive) and the 2,424,349 options were
exercisable from 19 December 2015 to 18 December 2024.

7. The options were exercisable from 23 November 2017 to 22 November 2027
(both dates inclusive).

8. The options were exercisable from 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029 (both dates

inclusive).

9. The Company recorded the fair value of these share options as staff cost in the
income statement. The Company will record the nominal value of the shares
which is HK$0.01 per share issued pursuant fo the exercise price of the share
options as additional share capital and the Company will record the excess of
the exercise price of the share options over nominal value of the shares in its
share premium account. Any share options which has lapsed or been cancelled
will be deducted from the balance of the share options.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts with Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered info
or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance
in relation fo the business of the Group, to which the Company,
its holding companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up fo and
including the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At any time during the year ended 31 December 2021, there were
no connected transactions or confinuing connected transactions
of the Company as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, which are required to comply with any of the reporting,
announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Llisting Rules. None of the related party transactions
constituted a connected transaction or continuing connected
fransaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 of the listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the directors. Having made specific
enquiry fo all the Direcfors, they confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, the Directors, managing Direcfors, alternate Directors,
auditors, secretary and other officers, for the time being, acting
in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or susfain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the exertion of their duty.

The permitted indemnity provision is currently in force for the benefit
of the Directors as defined and required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance and has been in force throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Company has not arranged for
appropriafe insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect fo legal actions against its Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The reasons for this decision is
elaborated on page 22 of the corporate governance report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are sef
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or subsidiary of the holding company has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or [ii] require the Company fo enter info any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares during the year ended
31 December 2021 or had subsisted at the end of year ended
31 December 2021.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The shares of the Company were listed on 18 March 2011 on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Based on publicly available
information and fo the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this report of directors under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by Elite Partners
CPA limited who refire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment in the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which consists of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial stafements for the year ended 31 December
2021,

by the Group and discussed with auditors in relation fo the infernal

including the accounting principles and practices adopted

control and financial reporting matters of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Caiwei

Executive Director

28 March, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
1R E5HEh¥RS

elite
- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the shareholders of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continved in Bermuda with

limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 81 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021

and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in

, and of its consolidated financial performance
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HRETER

BREETER
FRBFTASBRERMANEXZHE N
MEFAMGEEMBERRITREENER-
BPAEEFBERBEAVBRRAMR LK E
AREREHEFER MIAERUEFTRES
BRER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNESANMAEEZEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

ME - BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENRE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB144,670,000,
right-of-use assefs of approximately RMB1,275,000
and a mining right classified as intangible assefs of
approximately RMB33,414,000 relating to the Group's
cash-generating unit (the "CGU") regarding sale of
marble and marble-related products. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, impairment losses with
the amounts of RMB27,005,000, RMB194,000 and
RMB6,342,000 had been recognised on the Group's
property, plant and equipment, rightof-use assefs and
intangible assefs respectively. Details are set out in nofes
17, 19 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

M202112R831H EBEEENYE BENRR
HWHOAR®E144,670,0007T  EREEENARYE
1,275,000t R D B REBRV EENRBEHOARE
33,414,000t -98E BEEEEMEEREALK
BARHERNReELEM ([(ReELEN])A
s Z2021F12A3BLFE - E5ERYE -

BELEE EREEENRETLEED BIHERR
BEEEBEHARK27,0050007T  AR#194,0007T K&
AR®06,342,0007T - F B & B &N A7 & B 7% 3 K
F1719Kk18 -

The Group had engaged an independent valuer to
assist the management of the Company in estimating
the recoverable amount of the CGU which requires
significant judgment to be made by the management of
the Company.

BEEECZBE-RBUAEMNHEY BEARNEEE
HEAM BRAREEEFLEAHAEBNRESELESE
fi7 7] U @ & B8 4F A 5 e
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, rightof-use
assets and intangible assets included the following:
BPREEEEDE BELARG ERAEEENAR
B EENREFGEMATHNREFEBEUNTZE:

- Obtained cash flow forecasts prepared by the
management of the Company and assessed
the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions used for the preparation of the
forecasts (e.g. estimated reserves of mineral, sales
volume, unit selling price, estimated expenses and
discount rate etc.):

- ESHh SERAFREEEREMNBRSRERA
WEFERHEER (FINEFRERE HE -
HEEE BARXAMIRXZ)MATER
SR AN

- Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of an independent valuer and the method
used for estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU;

- RIEBMHEMNERKT BEORTHEUAR
hErReELEURIKSERMANAE:
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

EMNETNMMEEZEE (&)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Continued)

ME BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENREL (8

We had identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and infangible
assetfs relating to the CGU as a key audit matter
because significant management judgment was used in
determining key assumptions.
BPECRERSELEMBERNYE BENMERE -
ERBREEANETLEENREN G RBEEET
EE REAREEEXNHETERRIRBAELESR
all i

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

B 7 W OR KR E S

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB7 1,267,000, net of
allowance for credit losses.

R2021F12A318 BEXEESRKRELOR
AR¥71,267,000t (MBEEBEREME) -

HE S AREERARA T

- Discussed with the independent valuer the
appropriateness of the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating the recoverable
amount of the CGU and performed certain
procedures fo assess data and assumptions used in
the valuation; and

- HBUVMGMEMSRGEFREELABCAIREE
BRAINHDERBRONBEL LHTET
RFEFEEETANSRERRR &

- Checked, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of calculation of the recoverable amount
of the CGU.

- WMEZRERSELBMANKREESESAE AN
BEERE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on frade receivables included:

It B IR E S B 5 & UKIE AT E 80 RUE AT 14 P 3
TORFEENANTRE:

- Understood and evaluated the modelling methodologies
for expected credit losses measurement, assessed
the reasonableness of the model selection and key
measurement parameters defermination;

- THRIFHEHEEBRBRAENRETE
HRANEELRERTEZ2HNECREAE

- Checked, on a sample basis, the aged profile of the
trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 to
the underlying financial records and post yearend
setlements to bank receipts;

- HMEZEMNR2021F12A318E ZEWKIEDN
R BEREEAMBLEARFERRNGEH
1B B R 1T WU
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMNBFNAEEZSE (R

Impairment assessment on trade receivables (Continued)

B 5 B WROR KR E R (80

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different customers, the aged
profile of the trade receivables, historical seftlement
records, subsequent sefilement status, expected timing
and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order fo esfimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.
EEERBITAZPEARRI &5 EWHKENK
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We had identified impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because significant judgments had
to be made for the assessment of impairment under the
expected credit loss model.
RMERESZRBRURREAZREINRERETFE
RARFNEHEMEEFERA T ZREAFLERXN
) f o
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Inquired of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due at the end of
the reporting period and corroborated explanations
from management with supporting evidence, such
as undersfood on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checked
historical and subsequent sefflement records of and
other correspondence with the customers; and
MEEEERARANBERREBAHNZTEX
BEZRBRENRATNLEZBEIZEERE
WRE NMEBRRXITCHTHRETFNFER
KRR ZTREPHNBEEAREREERER
Hip@A &R &

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
in relation to trade receivables included in the
consolidated financial statements.

i BESBSRAUBRERMEBEE S EKN
HHNBEEESTRE -
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is moferio”y inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal control
as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend fo liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always defect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriafe fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal confrol.

i Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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®  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in o manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obfain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Ho Kwan with practising cerfificate
number: PO7543.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

10/F, 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FolEaNEMEANSE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B 22021 12A31H IEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i AR®T R ARBTT
REVENUE WA 8 74,247 72,765
Cost of sales RN (59,012) (65,864)
Gross profit EF 15,235 6,901
Other income and gains, net H At W A B W 55 0% 2R 9 1,092 142
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (3,733) (1,9471)
Impairment losses under expected BHEEBEEATZ
credit loss model, net of reversal HEEE (NRED) 10 (7,400) (14,4406)
Impairment losses recognised M MEERRBZRERRE
in respect of non-financial assefs (33,541) =
Administrative expenses THRAX (20,587) (20,469)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 11 (798) (636)
LOSS BEFORE TAX RREEATES 1B 12 (49,732) (30,449)
Income tax expenses TS BRI X 14 (610) -
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AATREEANELRFEEER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (50,342) (30,449)
Other comprehensive loss Hit2EEE
ltem that will not be reclassified FTEEHSEZEBEMNER:
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on franslation of ~ EIREGINERE LRI E K Z58
foreign operations (1,193) (3,990)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE KATREEANEEEE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 2HEBIEEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (51,535) (34,439)
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB cents) BRERB(ARES)
- Basic and diluted —EARREE 15 (1.8) (1.1)

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

el BiRRE

As at 31 December 2021 202141283 1H

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN NN 17 144,670 173,904
Intangible assets B EAE 18 33,414 39,756
Rightof-use assefs FREEE 19 1,275 2,185
Prepayment SCENE ] 24(a) 51,330 51,330
230,689 267,175
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 22 82 363
Trade receivables =) 1 & 23 71,267 78,852
Prepayment, deposits and BNRE ZER
other receivables H W IR 24(b) 4,383 4,208
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEY 25 7,145 4,254
82,877 87,677
CURRENT LIABILITIES HREBEaE
Trade payables g 5N IR 26 15,942 8,998
Llease liabilities HEAE 27 87 624
Other payables and accruals H A e~ kIR K EET B A 28 19,969 18,500
Amount due to a director B ESERE 29 6,105 6,294
Other loans HEMER 30 7,133 3,867
49,236 38,283
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 33,641 49,394
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABER
LIABILITIES 264,330 316,569

82 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #RE{IFSARIRZE

As at 31 December 2021 $R2021F12831H

2021 2020
20214 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 83 179
Provision for rehabilitation EER B 32 2,697 2,697
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBAE 21 = 608
2,780 3,484
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 261,550 313,085
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRHE
Equity attributable to owners of KAREAAEGESR
the Company
Share capital fi& A 33 24,435 24,435
Reserves Gk 34 237,115 288,650
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 261,550 313,085

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised ~ AN4R & BA SR R B R2022F3A28R EE S 2

for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2022 and are #LAERK#ETIE THTINESREES:
signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Cuiwei Zhang Weijun
RER REE
Director Director

5= 5=
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CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SiEEENE

Attributable o owners of the Company

KAAEEAEE

Foreign ~ Refained

currency profits/

Share Share  Contributed ~ Share opfion  franslation  (accumulated
capifal  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* losses)*  Total equity

HERE  REER/
Rx  BROEE* SRR BRERE i (RsER) aER
RMB000  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'00O
ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

(Note 34]  [Note 34)  [Note 34)
(Hi#s4)  (Wit34)  (H#34)
As at 1 Jonuary 2020 #202051R1R 24,435 221,144 14,480 36,069 1,620 49,776 347,524
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - 130,449) 130,449
Other comprehensive loss 2 EEBE - - - - 3,990 - 3,990)
Totol comprehensive loss rERBLE = = - - (3,990) 130,449 [34,439)
As ot 31 December 2020 and as af 1 Jonuary 2021 2020612318 RR2021F1A18 24,435 221,144 14,480 36,069 (2,370) 19,327 313,085
Loss for the year FERE - - - - - (50,342) (50,342
Other comprehensive loss At 2EER - - - - (1,193) - (1,193)
Totol comprehensive loss rHEBRER - - - - (1,193)  (50,342) (51,535
Lapsed of share options BIRIELN = = = (18,598) = 18,598 =
As af 31 December 2021 #2021612A318 24,435 221,144 14,480 17,471 (3,563) (12,417) 261,550
*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves i *  ZEHEBRE BREEA MBI RAKRATTIHN
the consolidated statement of financial position. AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HelREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B 22021 12A31H IEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Loss before tax MR AT ES 18 (49,732) (30,449)
Adjustments for: HATRBEELFHE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME WEREHEITE 7,396 11,004
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAREENE 696 1,506
Amortisation of intangible assets B A EEH - 1,988
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERREZ
plant and equipment &8 - 150
Impairment losses recognised in respect of FAIFE BB ERR
nonfinancial assets A EE 33,541 =
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, FEEAEEBEENT 2
net of reversal WEERE (R ) 7,400 14,446
Gain on early termination of lease RAKRIEHE 2 e - (69)
Reversal of provision for litigation FAB D - (3,401)
Interest expenses BRI 798 636
Interest income FLEMA (2) (M
Reversal of provision of other payables HAth fE A SRIE B R B (996) -
Write-down of inventories T & HOR 363 -
Operating cash flows before movements LEELEPALZ
in working capital KERSME (536) (4,190)
Change in inventories FTEEE (80) -
Change in trade receivables B 5 REWRIBEZ ) (1,571) (34,085)
Change in prepayment, deposits and BNFIE-EE R
other receivables H M E W S IE 2 B (521) (456)
Change in frade payables B o RN HIAE 7,135 8,440
Change in other payables and accruals H i FE A5 5RIE e FE At
ERE 2,295 658
Change in provision for litigation FAABEE - (7,200)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations REFEBMES
(FABR® 6,722 (36,833)
Tax paid ERHIE (1,218) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating RETEREB
activities (FFR)REFE 5,504 (36,833)

FEESAREEZERERAF

2021 &R 85



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS GG IREMSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE BB MRE (5,170) (6,339)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEME BERREBZ
plant and equipment PSR - 1
Loan advance fo a third party BRTE=ZAZEXK 429 =
Inferest received 2 F 8 2 1
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARSER 4,739) (6,337)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Interest paid EAFLE (494) =
Advance from a director BEERR 579 1,093
Advance from other loans H i BRI 3,918 4,055
Repayment to a director M—BEFEN (589) -
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBEER (635) (1,499)
Net cash generated from financing activities METBRAEREFHE 2,779 3,649
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRREEENF
CASH EQUIVALENTS #m CRD) 3,544 (39,521)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of RBEMN2BEE R
the reporting period fﬁi¥{5¢@ 4,254 49,022
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExgE w8 (653) (5,247)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RBEHRZREER
AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD REZEY 7,145 4,254
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS G IREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as BB EBELEcBEEHERENOT :

follow:
lease  Amount due
liabilities  to a director Other loans Total
HERE ENESRE HtEX @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARET T ARET T ARET T
As at T January 2020 R2020%1 A1H 2,470 5,586 - 8,056
Cash flows: ReEme:
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBREER (1,499 - - (1,499]
Advance from a director EZEX - 1,093 - 1,093
Advance from other loan EMERER = = 4,055 4,055
Other non-cash movements: HEReEs:
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFRAEEE 1,054 - - 1,054
Finance cost AR 77 = - 77
Early termination of lease RAKILHE (1,239) - - (1,239
Exchange differences R EH (60 (385) (188 (633)
As at 31 December 2020 and R2020F12R31H K
as at 1 January 2021 R2021€1A1H 803 6,294 3,867 10,964
Cash flows: BeneE:
Advance from a director BEEX - 579 - 579
Advance from other loans HERBR = - 3918 3,918
Repayment of lease liabilities HEEBEER (635) - - (635)
Repayment fo a director R—ZEEEN = [589) = (589)
Other non-cash movements: HEFReEe):
Finance cost FBRA 17 - - 17
Exchange differences fEHZ% [15] [179) (652) (846]
As at 31 December 2021 M2021%12831H 170 6,105 7,133 13,408
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n e Bl B ¥R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE2021412A318 LFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and sale of marble
and marble related products, mainly in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") and preparing and delivering food for
distribution to cojnsumers under virtual brands in The United
Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland (the “UK").

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on 29 March
2010 and changed its domicile to Bermuda with limited
liability on 10 August 2016. The address of registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the “Company Information” section to the annual report.

The Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi ("RMB'O00"), unless otherwise
stated. Hong Kong Dollar {"HK$") is the functional currency of
the Company. The directors consider RMB is the appropriate
presentation currency for the users of the Group's consolidated
financial statements as the functional currency of the
Company's major subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Internafional Financial Reporting Standards
["IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Llisting of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO IFRSs
Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments fo IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first fime,
which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or affer 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS @, IAS 39,
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of
the IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”] of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June 2021
which clarified the costs an entity should include as “estimated
costs necessary to make the sale” when defermining the net
realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %&x& Bl 55 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO IFRSs 3. JE R BAEET B Bs B % i e R
(Continued) (&)

€ 18 i B 18 K &£ Rz #7 5T K A5 ] Bl R
PR AR

AEBYERFEAATSEMEE K
R AT RS T BB B 7 i 2R R

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments fo IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendment to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRSs

A w N =

determined.

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments?

Sale or Confribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture#

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20211

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Classification of liabilities as
Current or Non-current®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction®

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Confracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements fo IFRSs

2018-2020?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2022.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

The directors anticipate that the application of new and

amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
e has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its

involvement with the investee: and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the dafe the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetfary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was defermined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the refranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations
are franslated info the presentation currency of the Group
[i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange raftes at the date of fransactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if 3% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straightline method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end

4.

R FIEOR (8

BRERETREIN WE - -BEMKEHRKAR
BERZFFIWER R RERE (0F)
RirE P BR R KT -

FEDRABERENREEMGFAIEAE
HAMBEEERA (EMBRMKEER)M
BR-AAAERFYH RNpEERTE
FERZMERR T AR - E R/ G

of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in BH X ERARKEREAR -A5HA
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated FERAFHEOT:

useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 10—20 vears ’BF 10E20%

Plant and machinery 5—15 years 5 K 2% S5E15%F

Office equipment 5 years N 5%

leasehold improvement Over the lease term HEWMEEE 1= 7H 5

Motor vehicles 4—10 years AE AFE10%F

Mining infrastructure infended to be used for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Such construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when complefed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property, plant and equipment, commences when they are
ready for their infended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent the
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “rightof-use assefs”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided inferest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the confinved use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coniinced BEOREHHBOR ()

Stripping costs B A

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are —MimE R EEMRRE SO REK AR

generally considered to create two benefits, being either the BRREERMBEMNR BEEFE HRE

production of inventory or improved access to the ore fo be #EA B R B R RIEIS A B8 - i % F A

mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in the form BEHAUNMEEFENSAER A

of inventory produced in the period, the production stripping EEHRRNAARRBEEZSFENK

costs are accounted for as part of the cost of producing those ey —EB5 -

inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved access ez F N 2 A E A B & R RIES

fo ore to be mined in the future, the costs are recognised as BENTAER A ABEKRNER R

a stripping activity asset and is accounted for as an addition EBEBE - WEME A TERR AR

fo, or an enhancement of, the ‘Mining Infrastructure’ in the BEAVBEMRARZ IRBEE] AL

consolidated statement of financial position if the following FAR T

criteria are met:

[a) it is probable that the future economic benefit (improved o) HEEFSH BB RBREEMZS (GEA
access to the ore body) associated with the stripping BERHBESINE)BAIRRA
activity will flow to the entfity; ZER:

(b)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body for b) ZERUMANBEETREENZSHD
which access has been improved; and Mo R

[c]  the costs relating to the stripping activity associated with (c) RERMSEMETERZE DB ZHK
that component can be measured reliably. EEN BB -

Other production stripping cosfs are charged fo the profit or Hofh A R ER A AN EE A B ET A B R B

loss as operating costfs as they are incurred. BRI -

The stripping activity asset is initially measured af cost, which K EBEEVN T UARANGE  ZKATS

is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform RUEEBANESBONEABEMET

the stripping activity that improves access to the identified MEEEBMEREELENRFTAE N E

component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable BHEEIEE IR A

overhead cosfs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping activity WPTEEFEOKRA R KR ESEE T

asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production SDREHZMN AAMBEEEFEEMEET

measure is used to allocate the production stripping costs BERHEORB A E 2 B9 Bl 4 B IR R

between the inventory produced and the stripping activity ZEEGFEDNRDCHMNBESHEOMAE

assef. This production measure is calculated for the identified WAREBRIEERKMFNRINEB R

component of the ore body and is used as a benchmark to EOEL AEEEERRROEY SR

identify the extent to which the additional activity of creating BHMOEER "BEELNBEREDWEE

a future benefit has taken place. The Group uses the expected L

volume of waste extracted compared with the actual volume

for a given volume of ore production of each component.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Stripping costs (Confinued)

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated using
the unit of production ["UOP") method over the life of the
identified component of the ore body that became more
accessible as a result of the stripping activity. The stripping
activity asset is then carried af cost less depreciafion and any

impairment losses.

Mining rights

Mining rights which classified as intangible assefs are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Mining rights include the cost of acquiring mining
licenses, exploration and evaluation costs fransferred from
exploration rights and assets upon determination that an
exploration property is capable of commercial production, and
the cost of acquiring inferests in the mining reserves of existing
mining properties. The mining rights are amortised by using
UOP method based on the proved and probable reserves of
the mines. Mining rights are written off to profit or loss if the
mining property is abandoned.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the confract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
fime in exchange for consideration.

For confracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a confract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Shortterm leases and leases of low-valve assets

fm S A 5 ¥R 2= Pl 53

HREFHBOR 2
HE@wm
KEBERBEEBA (8)
HHHEREEEEHE

HNEBERERBEFRI2ZEAXE
METESEEEEENNAE AE-
BEIMEEE A5ERFEHEE
ERHRE - AKBNTHYEEEEENE
ERERHE EMHENEEEEE
HENHEMNRERESZNEHAER

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption
to leases of offices, warehouse, plant and machinery that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value assefs. lease
payments on shortterm leases and leases of low-value assefs

are recognised as expense on a straightline basis over the R e
lease term.
Rightofuse assets EHEEE

EREEEKRABRRE:

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease ° HEBBENVIBRTESE:
liability;
o any lease payments made at or before the ° REERK BB ZAIELNER
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; HEMNT BREMRSNEANEES
BE:
e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and s AFEBEANETMAVBEERAE:
54
®  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in e AEERHKBKELABHREBEE &

FHEBEEMEMAKEBEER
JR 2= 0 516 R B 1R 4 P AR TE BOGIR RE
A A H fh AR o

dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

156 P #E & B 1 AR AR fA] R AT B ROR
EERE YHEEAB2ENTE

remeasurement of lease liabilities. EHFAEE

Right-of-use assefs are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

AREHERKAERESINSEHBEA
EEEFMAENERBREEMS A%
B HERGAREE ERFNE
REEERAE - EHMIBRT  ERE
BEMUERENEGE A ERFHE
HEMMEPHOBREERITE -

Right-of-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, rightof-use assets are
depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

AEENGEVBRAARABEREE
E2JREBEE -

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued|

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the inferest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments [including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable; and

®  paymenfs of penaliies for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option fo
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tfax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from "loss before tax" because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assefs arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporfing period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contved) 4. BEREFHHE o

Taxation (Continued) ﬁlﬁ (&)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates BEEHIBEEERBEDURSEHRE S
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability HAELLERMHORER (RBE) BE
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax E IRBHREBEBEEXNEEZIRBHE
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the ZBEABERH-

end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects BRERBEABREEZFERRAEER
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in HHRmERRKOKEEEEERE
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, BZHREAEBMTERHBER-

fo recover or sefile the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EREEANTENSINBHEEE S
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against MR EABEEREE BREERESR
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes ENBERER -RBHKBAHR —BRK
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation ERRBWHEN A BE Al KR T
authority. MBEEENAEILHEEHE-

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. BB R i RE R TE 015 25 FE AR o find BN BA R
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial BERRERBARXRBEAHOVIE ST R
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is EMEA ABRBERTAEBLEHD
included in the accounting for the business combination. R o
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are deftermined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assefs are recognised and derecognised on a frade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the fime
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with custfomers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
fo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on inifial
recognition.

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortfised cost of a financial assef or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
lincluding all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial |iobi|if\/, or where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and inferest income

Inferest income is recognised using the effective inferest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised
cost. For financial instruments, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become creditimpaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become creditimpaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate fo
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
creditimpaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporfing period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& Bif 7% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued HREEBUR (o)
Financial instruments (Confinved) cof - = NE)
Financial assets (Continued) SREE (5)
Impairment of financial assets EHEERE

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposits, loan receivables, other receivables and
cash and cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment
under IFRS @. The amount of ECL is updated at the end of
each reporting period fo reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In confrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the end of each reporting
period. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the end of reporting period as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing components.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4,

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

[i}  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of each reporting period with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’'s external (if available) or
internal credit rafing;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

®  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
fo cause a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved 4.

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i} Significant increase in credit risk (Continved)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full {without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
720 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
events that have a defrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) @ breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
confractual reasons relating fo the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, faking info account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

Financial instruments (Confinued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continved)

[v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL
The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
defermined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient
in estimating ECL on frade receivables using a provision
matrix taking info consideration historical credit loss
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate defermined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past
due information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes info
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status:

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is creditimpaired, in which case inferest income is

calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

106 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

Y=Y

lllm

Al 75 ¥R % Bt 5

R FIEOR ()
ERTIE
EWMEE (8)
THEERE (&)

(v)

BEHEEERZTERER
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%%W%%éﬁﬁ
X -BHBBEX(MBAKREBRR
B)RBHORBRMAO - ZOHME R
BUBRXZFGDERE LR
ERABEMEERFRAE -BAHEER
BENEGRBRAZEZEERZONE
eREEETNERBINES
B-AKERBATEELE &
REmREEGTEZEKFENE
HEEBR BT ERBEREER
BERARBAMNEANBEKRANKIE
NENAEFHATEEER -

—RmE BHEEERAREA
MENAKREZABANRERE
EAEEEHUDRZAERTRE
ZHENEZEE (RAEIFEE L
BERMEKEER) -

ETEZRERENEZHMEREER
Eﬁ?éﬁﬁa%ﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁfi’li?

BREENSHBEEREN®RRA
BEEEZE-

WREA R AR BERTH A
FEHEE TR

. BT

o EBAMLE RERITE R
o« SMEBEER (HE) -
BRETHRT S AR UER
SRR D ASALEE AR
o
FBMAT RS R A E RE S
BHE RELRAELREERE

ERBEAT FERARBEREE
ZEHERATTE

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 4. HEREFHBUER ()

Financial instruments (Confinued) EMIAm

Financial assets (Continued) TEEE (8)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) R EERE (%)

(v} Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) v TEHEEEREZFERER(H)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in AEERABRMEcRIAZEEE
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting U ERERRE 2R E K NE
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade B-EESRWFIR (HEEART
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is FREBREBRER) RN

recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets AU TER T B E

The Group derecognised a financial asset when the EREEWRIRESRECEHBENEmL
contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire, or AEBECDKHeRMEEREEREAEBAL
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the SEBEEREETS AR AAEE
risks and rewards of ownership of the assef to another party. SRIIEREMEE-

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised R I ERIREEN AT EZ 2 REER
cost, the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount ZEERBERD W R ERKEZENRE
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is ZETARNIBEER

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity THEERER

Classification as debt or equity DB EEK B

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial EREBEETADREANLHNEE
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of NERERABBEREZTANEESHR
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial REMBEENESZTE-

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments #mTA

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual B TADNDERAREEBIGRAMEAEGR
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its BENRGERNENAHN - SEER
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group entities are BIIZER T AREWMBRENRE
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. BBITHAER -

Financial liabilities at amortised cost HBEH AT ER LA E

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables cRHEAB(RRESENRE HitbE
and accruals, amount due to a former director, amount due NREMEFTER BN —RAIEERK
to a director and other loans are subsequently measured at B ENEEFFRELEMER) RS
amortised cost using the effective interest method. S AFERABERMNEEGTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition,/modificaiton of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, is recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
it the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as
part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange
or modification is considered as non-substantial modification
when such difference is less than 10 per cent.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at the
financial liabilities” original effective interest rafe. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of
the modified financial liabilities and are amortised over the
remaining term. Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the
financial liability is recognised in profit or loss at the date of
modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued|

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligafion represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is disfinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is fransferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an assef
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e  the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance complefed
fo date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a cusfomer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4.

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continved)
Revenue from sale of marble and marble related products
are recognised at a point in time. This is the time when
legal assignment is completed which is the time when the
control of the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been delivered to the customer's specific location.
Transportation and handling activities that occur before
customers obtain control are considered as fulfilment activities.
Certain percentage of advance payments received from
customers pursuant fo the respective sales contfracts before
the control of goods are passed to the customers. A confract
liability is recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised. The normal credit term is up to 90 days from the

date of billing.

Revenue from sales of food is recognised at a point in time
when control of the goods has been transferred, being when
the goods have been delivered to the customers. The normal
credit term is up to 30 days upon delivery.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group confributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged 1o profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed in

the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required fo participate in a cenfral pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required fo confribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

In addition to participating in national insurance contribution
for employees in the UK, the Group also partficipates in a
defined contribution scheme for the benefits of its employees.
All the contributions are based on a certain percentage of
the employee’s salary and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as incurred and have no further obligation for postretirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if 3% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continved)

Shortterm and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
tferm employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other longterm employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the exfent that another IFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured af the fair value of the
equity instrumenfs at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-setiled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventuo”y vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustiment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& Bif 7% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 4.  FERETFHBUR ()
Equity-settled share-based payments EEEEURODBER AR

transactions (Confinued) 2 (§)

RIEEZERE (&)
REREETHER TR BERERE
BRAZcHEBEREROEE WHEK
EREEB B WA E R B B
ARIETTE - Bl 2 A 70 BB AR M R 1B TE R
THEEBEREBEAN(RTER) -

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be fransferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred fo refained profits /{accumulated losses).

Borrowing costs BERA
All borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the FEREXNARELPREREPER -

period in which they are incurred.

=

Segment reporting DR E
REDBMREEVBHREMERZED
MeBEETHRATAEEZSTRE
BAERERIPELFBAEENERE
EBERTRAMBEBEMENRROVBEE
B e BB 2R e

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's most senior executive management for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of
the Group's various lines of business in different geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated M B2®ME  BRIESBEBHEUN
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have KESBLREERRRBEE £ET
FHE FEPRIUKER BEIEER
FRERBENTEREERROEE S
AL BAZEEAKLESHLTIES
Pt E - ERIGEEANKEE DB MR
AL KREOZE RIATSHAE-

similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions

aftaching to them and that the grants will be received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants (Continved)

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “Other income and gains, net”.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assefs and intangible assets, to defermine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible fo estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(the "CGU") to which the asset belongs. In testing a CGU
for impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount
is defermined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
fo the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Continved)
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount the assets on a prorata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an assef is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use [if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset [or CGU or a group of CGUs| is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or CGU or
a group of CGUs| in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive] as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to seffle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligafion.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to sefle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risk and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to seftle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows.

Provision for rehabilitation

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease at
the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required fo resfore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& Bif 7% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 4.  FERETFHBUR ()
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets FREERAREE

Contingent assets XREE

Contingent assefs arise from unplanned or other unexpected FREERFEII I EMBINEHESE
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of economic ZEEHFRARNEETREBENER
benefits to the Group and they are not recognised in the N EBETEREGEEVMBREABR - AE
consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses FHEFEIXABENBERER -WME
continually the development of contingent assefs. If it has REABEEEAKLENR AR A
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits AEBEREREHHREPENGES Y
will arise, the Group recognises the asset and the related BHREBBREERMEBAKA -

income in the consolidated financial statements in the reporting
period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities RREE

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past IARBBREABEEHMELNRASR
evenfs but is not recognised because it is not probable that T EERTRAEFTERLAGLE
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be NENERMNBETEE HEEEEE
required fo setfle the obligation or the amount of the obligation ERDAISEMETE WA THER -

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an MASEHEBEEAERLXRRERNE
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be T RAEHBEM ST ETNEERS S
met by other parties is treafed as a confingent liability and it is BERIKRABE MAGREE MR
not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. FIER

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an AEEFBETEUNEETROARAZR
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has EEE&BEMNRNER - MERMIERL
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of RABERENEAERAELFTERHEARRK
future economic benefits will be required for an item previously KBNS AREFEAELEESHNRE
dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised HEARGEM B RRERBEE EERE
in the consolidated financial statements in the reporting period EEH A EAE O RmE RIERTRIR
in which the change in probability occurs, except in the N

extremely rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can
be made.

Related party )l
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETHNBERT BEAALHHEERER
BB

[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (o) EWMALTHEABRBOFEUTE
related to the Group if that person: o BN BEAREEE R
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; i] HASEEEEZEHEXLREZE
il 4
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAREEBEERFEN %X
[iii) is a member of the ke\/ management personne| of (i) RAEEIAE NRSIE:)
the Group or the Group's parent. TEEREAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued|

Related party (Continved)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

4.

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one enfity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity [or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other enfity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is confrolled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in [al(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a fransfer of resources, services

or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members

who may be expected fo influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entfity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

5.

118

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assefs and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounfing estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimafe is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. In defermining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1] whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2] whether
the carrying amount of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable
amounts including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-of-
use assefs), the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assefs belongs. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth rate
in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if 3% ¥k 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. Al EE AN RE Y 35 BRI ()
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Mine reserves ELRE
Engineering estimates of the Group's mine reserves are HREAEERILUBENIRGEA TR
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate amounts BARENHE AUEGEAHELRE L
because of the significant judgments involved in developing WA WERKBOBE - R EFHE
such information. There are authoritative guidelines regarding IWERREERIEE] & [H®] A
the engineering criteria that have to be met before estimated AREERIRERENERES -BE
mine reserves can be designated as “proved” and “probable”. M REILEEMAT DEEESEILA
Proved and probable mine reserve estimates are updated FHEERBRMENBIELTHERN-
at regular intervals taking info account recent production pboh AR EBRRKARKFEEFEEE  F
and technical information about each mine. In oddiﬁon, as ERBEBELUGEESETTIEMNES )t
prices and cost levels change from year fo year, the estimate EHWERMEAENMSNETES
of proved and probable mine reserves also changes. This WIRARRBERERBRNRBLITIRE R BB
change is considered a change in estimate for accounting REEEMEENKRAENTERE
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in both HE-BUREGLANEDTEEINS
depreciation and amortisation rates calculated on a UOP BMEERRENL -

basis and the time period for discounting the rehabilitation
provision. Changes in the estimate of mine reserves are also
taken into account in impairment assessments of non financial
assefs.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and other EZRWRERRBERATE
financial assets measured at amortised cost HEMEREENTAHEEESE
BiE

Trade receivables with significant balances or creditimpaired AEEREHBILEBREERENE SR
and other financial assets measured at amoritsed cost are WRBEARREHK AT ENE M SR
assessed for ECL individually. BEDHREHREEBEETEBIMG-
In addition, the Group uses practical expedient in estimating It AN - 7S & [ BE 00 3F AR R AR R 1T
ECL on trade receivables which are not assessed individually BERFENEZRERKRAIBERBATER
using a provision matrix. The provision rates are based on FEMGABEEER -BEHEXDER
aging of debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into TREBEAEGNNEBARER 1 EE
consideration the Group's historical default rates and forward- AEENBARBHONERRBENERBE K
looking information that is reasonable and supportable REGHMAIEFSHABAIEMEREE
available without undue costs or effort. At the end of each H-RE@mER ELEREREOXEE
reporting period, the historical observed default rates are et CEBEREEERNES-
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are

considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimafes. The EHEEERBEHATNEIRARK
information about the ECL are disclosed in note 7. B BHARRAGEEFEENER N T7#®

%o
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. A by B

The Group manages its capital to ensure that enfities in the REBEBREERN UHBERAEECZE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BHEAAFEREERLE WHEBEMLME
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation BRERE TEH SREFRKFAMD
of the debt and equity balance. e

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group RERERE AREB2ERNEEBREH
consists of debt which includes equity attributable to owners of ARARMBEAEAEBEREZARZER &
the Company. The directors review the capital structure on a EEHNEHEARB -FALENZ —
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the Mo BEEEEEAKARMEBERRE W
cost of capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate ERDNBETHUAHAEBR 2 EARE
actions to adjust the Group's capital structure. The Group's B-EBEFEMRL AEE 2 BERR
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years. MAGFTE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BA%E\ B4 PE H A M 5

AND POLICIES

The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and FEENcREEIZRERe AR
cash equivalents, trade receivables, deposits, loan receivables SEYD BESEUZE Lo EBHRER
and other receivables. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly MEMERFEBE - AEENTREEE
include trade payables, amount due to a former director, other ZREESEMNKRE EN—RBAES
payables and accruals, amount due to a director and other RE -HEMENRIERETER EBNE
loans. EREREMER

Risk management is carried out by the finance department AREEMBHERTESFTNRE TET
which is led by the Group's executive directors. The Group's RERERE AEEYHKBERNEEZE
finance department identifies and evaluates financial risks in BPABRZA1E- B 8 H A MY B R
close co-operation with the Group's operating units. The main R AKEETRIAMELENTIZAR
risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are liquidity BERSHMRR MERR- FERRR
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. HNEE =L B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure
that adequate resources are available to manage the above
risks and to create valve for its shareholders. The board
regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Categories of financial instruments

fn S Bl 35 ¥R P 53

7. PR EBEAE P H R R BUR (&)

AEENYBRAREERRE EERA
RPHEREELARAR AR RAE
BE-EFTEEHBEAZFAR (RTX
Bt

() $MIEZHE

2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREF T
Financial assets: TREE:
At amortised cost HHEHEKN AT E 81,958 86,748
Financial liabilities: TRasE:
At amortised cost BN AT = 40,311 30,749

(b) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors ifs foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant variable-rate interest
bearing assets and liabilities. The Group’s income,
expenses and operating cash flows were substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Fluctuation of market rate does not have significant
impact to operating cash flows and no sensitivity
analysis has been presented accordingly.

FEESAREEZERERAF

(b) Fhis B
AEBEEHMINERBRE N 1T
HMRERBIEBRS BERA
BEEUAEEERBNINEER
B-AKEREREIERINER S
BENBESFTINE P EEK K
SETNEREINERR A KR

FERZEYHPEARINERAR -

(c) F=ZEE R
REBEVWE/IZZEFENEREE
REBE-AEEZHRA HAXREK
ERSREALRA LFEAMBF RN E
tEBR THEFNEREHEHLEERS
MElr&REAZE2 AL EZ
BRRE DT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d)

Ko 75 Rl e 7 PR H AR R BEOR ()

FERRKRERN G

The Group's bank balances are held in major reputable
financial institutions located in the PRC and Hong
Kong, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise trade receivables, deposits, loan
receivables and other receivables arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal fo
the carrying amounts of these instruments. The Group has
no other financial assets which carry significant exposure
to credif risk.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number
of customers in the marble distributors. As a result, it
faces a high level of concentration of credit risk. The
Group manages this risk by offering standardised
credit terms fo its customers of marble products for an
approved credit term up fo three months. Some major
customers which have long relationship with the Group
were granted for a longer payment term. The Group
maintains sfrict confrol over its outstanding receivables
and senior management regularly reviews the overdue
balances. In addition, the Group’s exposure to credit
risk is also influenced by the individual characteristics of
each cusfomer and default risk of the industry in which
customers operate.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 76%
(2020: 43%) and 100% (2020: 100%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the largest customer and
top five largest customers within the sales of marble and
marble related product segment.
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AEBNRITERERARTERE
ANTEMZCBBE MEEE
HEZXEHRBRAAERUIEEE X
AEBEMEREE(BRESRE
WHIE e BURERREMBE
WRE)NEERRBERXZHF
TEAOMEL MAERN&RE
RHERZETLANKEE A&
EYEHEMEGERNEERRO S
BMEE -

AEEHEABIERTRKEAD
HEPHNIBEP At HER
BESETEERBR -AKERABM
HABAEMNEFPRHEREREE
H(RBEEERERSH=MEA)
EEZERR - -EAKEEFRY
MRERZETEIETEFERERMM
FHIRR - AN &= 8 A K k3R
RERFTERES ERREEE
EEHENAREHR U KK
BrREENEERRIZIEESR
FOEINFEREFEEXBHME
TENENRRMAZE-

AEBEEEETRR REAE
2 W RIA LT 2706% (20204 :
43%) % 100% (20204 : 100% ) T3
REXEARKEAHEBEMD A
ZRABEPERERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The Group applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime ECL allowance for
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The following table provides information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECls for trade

receivables:

As at 31 December 2021

7.

Ko 75 el e 7 B H AR R BOR ()

(d) E& R RREEFE @

AEBERBERKRMEHRELERNES
BT EHERBEERE %
FEREBEZRUKBEREH
BHEEBERBEG RAEFRYE
EEE E5RUREECRERLR
MEERRBBERBMRAHE E-
TREKEABASBEMEENEER
Rk &% E 5 EBKAEN AR ERES
BHER:

R2021512A31H

Expected credit

loss rate  Gross carrying Loss
(Note 1) amounts allowance
RMB’000 RMB’000

BHEEBEE
(HaE1) AR ERE®E

ARBETT ARBTT

Provision on individual basis A B E AT IR 100% 1,462 1,462
Provision on collective basis REBEEETREE

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 2.7% 17,990 485
91 to 180 days Q1=180H 2.8% 5,657 158
181 to 360 days 181=360H 4.2% 6,999 297
361 1o 720 days 3612720H 26.9% 56,844 15,283
Over 720 days 7208 M £ 100% 27,529 27,529
Total @ 116,481 45,214

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
As at 31 December 2020

7. AR E\ B P H R R BUR (#)

(d) EE R RREEFEME @

2020 12H31H

Expected credit

loss rafe Gross carrying Loss
(Note 1) amounts allowance
BHEEEBEE
(HfaET) FEEamE EERE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFIT AREFT
Provision on individual basis RERIEETIREE 100% 116,338 116,338
Provision on collective basis R AR ERTIRE

0 to 90 days 0Z=90H 1.3% 27,387 357
91 to 180 days Q1&180H 11.2% 19,835 2,219
181 to 360 days 1812360H 12.6% 26,290 3,310
361 to 720 days 3612720H 40.5% 18,856 7,639
Over 720 days 7208 M F 100% 21,845 21,845
Total st 230,560 151,708

Note: Bt

1) Expected credit loss rates are based on actual loss experience
and adjusted to reflect current and forward-ooking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers to
seffle the receivables. The Group has identified factors to be the
most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss

rates based on expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

fn S Bl 35 ¥R P 53

7. PR EBEAE P H R R BUR (&)

(d) E& R RREEFE @

(Continued)
Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL
credit-impaired)  (creditimpaired) Total
2HEY 2 HES
FEBE FEFR
(E|EEFHE) (FEGERME) @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT R AR¥T R
As at 1 January 2020 202061 H1R 22,960 116,338 139,298
Transfer fo lifetime ECL BREE2HEHREE
[creditimpaired) BE (FEEERE) (14,837) 14,837 -
Impairment losses recognised ERAREER 7,438 7,008 14,446
Exchange realignment R (2,036) - (2,036)
As at 31 December 2020 and ~ ®2020F12A31H Kk
as at 1 January 2021 M2021F1 18 13,525 138,183 151,708
Impairment losses recognised EEAREER - 10,483 10,483
Impairment losses reversed BRI EEE (982) (2,001) (2,983)
Transfer fo lifetime ECL ERELHRBEEEE
[creditimpaired) (FEEERE) (10,652) 10,652 =
Wiitien off 3 - (114,876) (114,876)
Exchange differences EHER - 882 882
As at 31 December 2021 M2021512A31H 1,891 43,323 45,214

An impairment assessment on the Group's trade

receivables was prepared by an independent
valver. The ECL for trade receivables was measured

at approximately RMB45,214,000 (2020:

RMB151,708,000) as at 31

December 2021 and

was measured in accordance with the IFRS @ and the

following formula:

Exposure at Default (EAD) * Probability of Default (PD) *
Loss Given Default (LGD) * Discount Factor (DF).

FEESAREEZERERAF

A& B E 5 R WK IR &R E RF
BB ERMET BE2021F
12A31H - BB EERENHEAEB
EEBREHRBARY45,214,000
7T (20205 - ARM 151,708,000
TT) WRBEERMERELENFEO

HRATAAGE:

EH R RO (EAD)* BAB X (PD)*
BAERE(LGD)* B 3E X (DF) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

7.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Ko 75 Rl e 7 PR H AR R BEOR ()

(d) EE R RREEFEME @

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables would be the
EAD. Depending on the nature of receivables, the PD
is derived from various parameters, such as corporafe
default rate forecasts by industry, emerging market
credit indices by industry and rating, aging record and
historical payment or default records from the company
are considered.

The credit quality of deposits, loan receivables and
other receivables has been assessed with reference to
historical information about the counterparties default
rates. The directors are of the opinion that, except for
other receivables with the amounts of approximately
RMB78,311,000 (2020: RMB78,411,000) classified
as creditimpaired, the credit risk of deposits, loan
receivables and other receivables is limited due fo no
significant change in credit quality of the counterparty
of these financial assets. Therefore, impairment loss
of approximately RMB100,000 in respect of other
receivables was reversed during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

The following table show reconciliation on loss
allowance of other receivables under general approach:

EHRRBORAE S EKRZKIED
REE - RFEEFENEE  EDQ
BEREZHSE MRITEEDH
EEREOXRTER  LTEE D H
MHEEEBERFR RELHEER
A BN R B KRS8

e BUWERREMLERKED
EREERNE2EERU T HEN
EMELERFE -BEERR K
HIREEREN M ERFEDA
KR#78,311,0007T (20204 : A
R#78,411,0007T) 40 =& F&
W B RN CE R WK IR Y E B AR
ER RARZEFEMEEH T
WEEERYEEREH At
REZE2021F12A318LFE -
BOEMEEFAREBEOAR
#100,0007T (20204 : &) -

TRINTE BRI AR E M E
WOk TR B R e 0 B

Lifetime ECL
[creditimpaired)
FHITEHA
EE8EE
(FEEERE)
RMB'000
ARBEFIT
As at 1 January 2020, as at 31 December 2020 7202051 A 1H » 520204
and as at 1 January 2021 12A31H &R2021F1A1H 78,411
Impairment loss reversed EREREEE (100)
As at 31 December 2021 A2021412A31H 78,311
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (e)

Ko 75 el e 7 B H AR R BOR ()

REBETER

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of
funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows
from operations. The Group's objective is to mainfain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interestbearing loans and its own
funding sources.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. When the creditor has a choice
of when the liability is setiled, the liability is included on
the basis of the earliest date on when the Group can be
required fo pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities
are based on agreed repayment dates.

AREEEERALBABRSBE
ENMRABSLEERERENE
EREASERAR  AEBENE B
BEBEMAHERARAASNE
SRR B E S R REE R
P

TRFAINBERRAEE SR E
BRI ANBBBER AR IIRE
AEEAREHERNKNEE BN
ReEMBENARMBERSRERR
EERATEEAREENSHE
BERASETRENEREENR
FEHHAR-2RABNIHAER
BHEZERAH-

As at 31 December 2021

#2021%12R318

More than
2 years
Less than but not Total
1 year Between more than  undiscounted Carrying
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years cash flows amounts
15/ 250 L REB
FRER 1226 {BFBBSE HeREAH REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR
Trade payables BHRENFE 15,942 - = 15,942 15,942
Other payables and accruals HEHHER
[EirER 11,131 - - 11,131 11,131
Amount due to a director ERNEZHE 6,505 = = 6,505 6,105
Other loans HEBER 7,492 S = 7,492 7,133
lease liabilities HERE 93 86 = 179 170
41,163 86 - 41,249 40,481

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BA%EBE4E P H B KRB e
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (Contined) e) RBEEZRAMR 9
As at 31 December 2020
®2020%12A318

More than
2 years
less than but ot Total
1 year Between more than undiscounted Carrying
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years cash flows amounts
16/ 2B AER
FREX 1226 BTBRSE HenEeE RHE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT INGL S

Trade payables B 5 ENFUE 8,998 - - 8,998 8,908
Other payables and accruals HENTER
et &R 11,590 = = 11,590 11,590
Amount due to a director ERNEZHE 6,738 - - 6,738 6,294
Other loans HtER 4,095 - - 4,095 3,867
lease liabilities HE&RE 644 96 88 828 803
32,065 96 88 32,249 31,552
(f) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets (fl UYFEKREMLEEUNQIAE
and financial liabilities that are not FENAEEEREERSE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis mEEZARE
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of EERAMEFEAEECREE
financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to kemaBcRREEREEBELZ
their fair values for both years. NABEEE-
8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WA Je A8 gyl R
INFORMATION
Revenue represents the consideration for goods sold, net of WABEESERWRE IKRE ST
frade discounts and returns and various types of government MEBURZEBEBAHME (HEH) -

surcharges, where applicable.
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8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8.
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group's revenue and confribution to profit were mainly

W\ Je 588 o i BB )

AEENRAREGENOEREEZRA
ARELGRABEAHEBERNEE EK
BIEE-—REDH BAEEPNTES

RERTERERRE)ITERNENR
FEEREERDERKRRFEAEDH
identified as chief operating decision maker, for purposes of AR BBt - MEZ3HBER - 11
resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, SN REBE AR ABO0%IREFEA
HBOOWMERBEELBUN P E
I EREERM B RE LD ESR 2
53 &% 7 &F & #Y o

derived from its sale of marble and marble related products,
which is regarded as a single operafing segment in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is regularly reviewed
and evaluated by the Group's executive directors, who is

no segment information is presented. In addition, over Q0% of
the Group's tofal revenue were derived in the PRC and over 90%
of the Group's non-current assets were located in the PRC, no
geographical segment information in accordance with IFRS 8 is

presented.

Information about products

The following table sets forth the revenue from external

customers during the year:

FHRERNES
TREINFARBIBEL WA :

2021 2020
2021%F 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFPELHZIWA
recognised af a point in time: (RE—REER
Marble slabs KI2 AR 15,491 41,413
Marble slags REAES 58,647 31,352
Sales of food HERM 109 -
74,247 72,765
Information about major customers FEEZEEFHNESH

Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for

10% or more of the total revenue is set out below:

KEXTEEFP (BREZERBANION
A L) IR AE ST

2021 2020

2021%F 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARET T

Customer A BEEA 11,956 18,963
Customer B [Note) BEEB(MaE) N/AFi#E A 22,450
Customer C BFEC 58,647 31,352

Note: Revenue derived from Customer B did not contribute 10% of revenue of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.

FEESAREEZERERAF

et BE2021F12A31HIEFE - KBEEFBHK
A ARMEREBEAR0% -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers (Continued|
Except for disclosed above, no other customers confributed
10% or more fo the Group for both years.

Transaction allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of IFRS 15 fo its sales confract for marble and related
products and sales of food such that the Group does not
disclose information about revenue that the Group will
be enfiled to when it satisfies the remaining performance
obligations under the contract for sales of marble and related
products and sales of food that had an original expected
duration of one year or less.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

S il 35 ¥R & b 53

BOA T K 43 B o)

EHEXEEZEFMNER »)
B EXEBEEIN MEEME AR E
FEHAEEWRATEIIO% I Lo

TEEFEFEHNKRTENEEN
X5

AEBECD KRB BEREERNEISRSE
NRIBWMATEE S ZEAREKREAR
LREBERAREMOEEAL  Hit-
AEEYEFEARASERET AR
ARABERUNRRAEESHN (RE
HHRA—FHUT)ETHRTREOE
EREARESHBRANER -

At e N\ e W 2 5

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR®EFIT
Interest income FEMA 2 1
Exchange gain/|loss) 5 Uz, (B548) 2 (17)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BERRE2EE
plant and equipment = (150)
Reversal of provision of H i A OB AR (Hati)
other payables (Note i) 996 =
Gain on early termination of lease AR IEHEE 2 & - 69
Government grants (Note i) BT ek (A atii) - 144
Others Hity 92 89
1,092 142

Nofes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group ferminated a
consultancy services with a counterparty, no additional cost was required
for such cancellation. Thus, reversal of provision was recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount represents
government subsidies granted due to the COVID-19 pandemic under the
Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong Government. There were
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these government
grants.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER EXPECTED

10. TS S0 IRABUT Z I fE s

CREDIT LOSS MODEL, NET OF REVERSAL (B4 e )
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFIT
Impairment losses recognised/ FTIIEERR, (BE) 2
(reversed), net on: BEEEFE:
— trade receivables —Z ZREWRIEA 7,500 14,446
— other receivables —H fh fE W FRIE (100) -
7,400 14,446
11. FINANCE COSTS 11, BAE AR
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AREEFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEABERNE 17 77
Interest on loan from a director BEEERFEB 442 403
Interest on other loans Ha B3 FH B 339 156
798 636

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE
12. LOSS BEFORE TAX

12.

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %&x& Bl 55 ¥R 2% b 5

B3R 5 1y s 18

AEBEHBRBATERENER (GEA) A

(crediting): TEBEEBEN:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR AREF T
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 14,614 39,105
Production stripping cosfs HERIBRBAR (FEAHERA)
lincluded in cost of sales) 38,759 25,861
Staff costs (including directors’ ETRA(BREEMNSE) :
remuneration):
— Salaries and directors’ fee —-HeRhESFHES 5,474 4,468
— Retfirement benefits scheme —iRIRTEFFT B B3k
contributions 173 121
— Allowance and benefits in kind —EMREYHN = 30 10
5,677 4,599
Auditor’s remuneration: BRI 2 -
— Audit services — B RS 458 444
— Non-audit services —3EF RS 134 142
Amortisation of infangible assets B A = - 1,988
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BELEREITE
equipment 7,396 11,004
Depreciation of rightof-use assefs FREEENE 696 1,506
Expenses related to shortterm lease 7 HATE S ARRAR X 2,720 447
Impairment losses recognised AT B IRMEREBERE
in respect of:
— property, plant and equipment —E ME KRR 27,005 =
— infangible assets —EmEEE 6,342 -
— right-of-use assets —(ERREE 194 -
Reversal of provision for litigation SR FARE{E R O = (3,401)
Write-down of inventories TEMR (FTAHERAR)
(included in cost of sales) 363 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ Emoluments

13. EF A A4 ERHGALHNE

() EEM=

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HZ2021F128310LEE

Refirement
Salaries, benefits
allowances and scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions emoluments
§é 2ER BARERHE
He ENAE #% MedE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W ARETR ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Executive directors: RTES:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui GxEBLE - 299 - 299
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REALL - 199 - 199
Mr. Zhang Weijun REELE - 149 - 149
Mr. Zhang Mian prsiib - 199 - 199
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHITES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHEE 80 - - 80
Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed Mehmet Ertan Ahmed %% 4 (ii 72 - = 72
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos % & i) 199 - - 199
Ms. Pei Bing FELT (iv) 7 - - 7
358 846 - 1,204
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE2020512R3181LEE
Refirement
Salaries, benefits
allowances ond scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind confributions emoluments
EiR=1:04 RIKERE A
ik BN # Hewns
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Bizk ARETFT ARETF AREFT AREFT
Executive directors: HEF:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui PxERE S 230 S 230
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei RBELL = 433 2 435
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong RERLAE i - 68 - 68
Mr. Zhang Weijun REELE = 160 = 160
Mr. Zhang Mian REEE S 213 = 213
Independent non-execufive directors: BUENTES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHEKE 85 = = 85
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEREE li 53 - - 53
Ms. Wang Yihua TEEgL li 53 - - 53
Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed Mehmet Ertan Ahmed % 4 [ii 29 - - 29
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos % & i) 98 - - 98
318 1,104 2 1,424

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

13. DIRECTORS” AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Confinued)

(a) Directors’ Emoluments (Continved)
Notes:

(i) Resigned on 29 June 2020

(ii) Appointed on 28 September 2020 and resigned on 2 September
2021

[iii)  Appointed on 17 July 2020

liv)]  Appointed on 1 December 2021

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind paid to or
for the executive directors are generally emoluments
paid or payable in respect of those persons’ services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and ifs subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for the services as the directors.

(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals
Two (2020: one) of the five highest paid individuals of
the Group were directors whose emolument is sef out in
the above. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
remaining three (2020: four] highest paid individuals of
the Group were as follows:

13. EF a4 AEHFANALHE @

() EEME 9

Wit
(i) M2020F6 A29H B {E

(ii) MR2020F9 A28 H EZE £ K 202149
A28 B

lii)  H2020F7R17REZRE

liv)  R2021F12A1REZRE

AERATEFTINZHF S FH
REDNSERREZFIALTEEARAR
AREMBABZEEMEHRZR
XN ENZ - R -

EXFRRBUFRATESNOMES )
RETEFREHEORBM -

(b) EEESHFAL
AEBRIERSFALTEERA
(2020 : —R)EBEE - RENHE
EEN EX-BZE2021F12H31
BEFEE AEBHEBK=%(2020
FOR)ESHEALTHMESDOT:

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBEFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe EURREMEYH R
in kind 1,392 1,767
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R UK 48 7| 51 2l 4 7 41 64
1,433 1,831
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 2021412431 EFE
13. DIRECTORS” AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five Highest Paid Individual (Continved)

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

13. EF LA EHFALIE o

b) AEERBHF AL &)
WEZHMEE LT :

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
Emolument band: SriMEE
Nil = HK$500,000 0Z 500,000 7T 2 3
HK$500,001 - HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 TE
1,000,000 7T 1 1
3 4

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement fo join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
None of the directors or five highest paid individuals waived
or agreed fo waive any emoluments during the years ended

31 December 2021 and 2020.

Except disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other tfransactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or
any subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

FEESAREEZERERAF

REE2021F K2020F12A318 1EF
B AEBITEAEEFXREAESFHA
ITXME ERRIBREMALREE
FRMAREE R ER HERREE
BB - B E20214F R2020F12H3]1
FLtFE MEESIRARZSFAL
MESLF BB HM -

BEaMBHRRMEI7ABEE N R
FRIXFATAER ARAFKAR A
EANBRARMELETTBAEEE
BEREEERNETERIAHEEEERE
ARESHEMR S ZHREQ-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 14. iSRS

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEBEMSH
— Current tax —BNEfRE 1E 1,218 -
Deferred tax credit fnote 21) BEB AR R (Ha221) (608) =
Total income tax expenses PRSI < 4858 610 -

Under the Llaw of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for
both years.

The tax rafe of subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject fo Hong
Kong Profit Tax at 16.5% for both years.

The tax rate of subsidiary in the UK is subject to Corporation
Tax ("UK Corporation Tax") and is calculated at 19% for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and UK Corporation
Tax has been made for the year ended 31 December 2021
as the Group has no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong

or in the UK.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax and Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for the year ended 31 December
2020 as the Group has sufficient tax losses brought forward
fo set off against assessable profits or no assessable profits
arising in the PRC or Hong Kong.
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EEZHBARNMEFEERIO.5%
MREBRBENEH -

HZE2021F12A31BIEFEE RERH
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(TEERFB]) o

BHZE2021F12A31BEFE BHRAK
SEIERBEREBELRIT G
BALEABTANERREE QB HREH
B

HRAEEAEREMEEHABRA
HEEFFRENINPERTEL EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4&5S Bif 3% k2% Bii ¥
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Confinved) 14, iR X )
The reconciliation between the income tax expenses for the FRMERRSZR 5%‘} 75t Al & 18 3k LA B A

year and the loss before tax multiplied by domestic income tax A5
rate is as follows:

BB EZYHERENOT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTT

Loss before tax B 5 B B 1B (49,732) (30,449)

Tax at domestic income tax rate REANMSHTXFENDIER (11,044) (7,739)
Tax effect of income not taxable M B W BARR AR

for tax purpose MG E (785) (11)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ST B BT A 08 B

for tax purpose ML 10,624 5,256

Estimated tax loss not recognised ARG HIEERE 1,975 2,494
Utilisation of tax losses previously BAAERERNR AR IR

not recognised (160) -

Income tax expenses PSTR X 610 -

15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. H b H
(a) Loss per share—Basic () BREBE-EX

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss for the year atiributable to owners of
the Company of approximately RMB50,342,000
(2020: RMB30,449,000) and the weighted average
number of approximately 2,832,083,000 (2020:
2,832,083,000) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

(b) Loss per share—Diluted (b)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2021, the
effects of all potential ordinary shares are anti-dilutive
since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease
in loss per share.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for

BREXBELDRELRRQGHE
EAREFEBREROARE
50,342,000t (2020F : AR ¥
30,449,000t) R FAE BEITE
AR INE TS EX2,832,083,000
& (20204 :2,832,083,0008%)
n‘l’%'fﬁa‘ﬁ"

SRER-#F

B Z20204 R2021412A3]1
IWEE A BEY ﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬂ?ﬁﬂi
BARE BN BRI RS
BEEBRTEREREERD -

MEFEzSREARREEERN

both years. ]
16. DIVIDEND 16. BB
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders Eﬁ Z2021¥12A31BLFEXERA
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2021, N F) B AR AR R OK 3R K A AE AT AR
nor has any dividend been proposed subsequent fo the end of B BEREHERRTERZRNEM
the reporting period (2020: Nil). P& B (20205 - &) -

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W2~ B S st

Leasehold
improvement
Plantand  and office Motor Mining  Construction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  infrastructure  in progress Total
BENE
ZER
BT HEREE BOERE RE  RRER HBIE &t
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTRT ARMTR ARETRT AR%TR ARETR AR%TR
COST: A
Asat 1 January 2021 R2021F1A18 9,232 55714 6,041 12,107 61,183 116,627 260,904
Addifions RE - - - - - 5,170 5,170
Exchange realignment EHHE - - - (16) - - (16)
As at 31 December 2021 #2021412A318 9,232 55714 6,041 12,091 61,183 121,797 266,058
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT: R HiEREE:
As ot 1 Jonuary 2021 R202161A18 4,978 36,022 3,358 11,302 13,950 17,390 87,000
Provided during the year FRER 555 5743 414 684 - - 7,396
Impairment losses recognised BRRREE 590 2,226 - - 7,534 16,655 27,005
Exchange reclignment ERAE = = = (13) - - (13)
As af 31 December 2021 #2021612A318 6,123 43,991 3772 11,973 21,484 34,045 121,388
Carrying amounts: fREE:
As at 31 December 2021 M2021€12A318 3,109 11,723 2,269 118 39,699 87,752 144,670
COST: A
As at 1 Jonuary 2020 R2020F1 418 9,232 57,221 6,130 12,142 61,183 110,301 256,209
Additions RE = 13 = = = 6,326 6,339
Disposal and written-off HE R - 1,520] 88) - - - 1,608
Exchange reclignment E AR - - (1) (39) - - (36]
As af 31 December 2020 20204124318 9,232 55714 6,041 12,107 61,183 116,627 260,904
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT: Rt B RHE:
As at 1 January 2020 #202051A18 4,402 30,172 2,961 8,602 13,950 17,390 77,477
Provided during the year FREE 576 7,263 442 2,723 - - 11,004
Released upon disposal and writien-off HERMBERER - 11,413 [44) - - - 11,457
Exchange reclignment ERRE - - (1) 23] - - 24)
As af 31 December 2020 H2020%12831R 4978 36022 3358 11,302 13950 17,39 87,000
Carrying amounts: REE:
As af 31 December 2020 #2020612A318 4,254 19,692 2,683 805 47,233 99,237 173904
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved) ~ 17. P03~ B 55 B 5% il ()

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly used
in the Group's sale of marble and marble related products
operation (the “Sichuan Jinshida CGU"). During the year
ended 31 December 2021, the directors conducted a review
of the recoverable amount of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and rightof-use assets based on
the value in use of Sichuan Jinshida CGU and concluded that
amounts of approximately RMB27,005,000, RMB6, 342,000
and RMB194,000 was impaired during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil) in the Group's property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use assefs. The
recoverable amount have been determined on the basis of
the value in use of the Sichuan Jinshida CGU, the valuation
is prepared by an independent professional valuer. The pre-
tax discount rate in measuring the amounts of value in use
were 29% (2020: 21%) in relation to Sichuan Jinshida CGU.
The growth rate of cash flow in the long run are extrapolated
using a steady growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%). Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows included budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the
Sichuan Jinshida CGU's past performance and management's
expectation for future performance.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of Sichuan Jinshida CGU to exceed the recoverable
amount. If the discount rate was changed to 35% (2020:
25%), while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of CGU of Sichuan Jinshida CGU would be reduced
to approximately RMB 128,000,000 and a further impairment
of approximately RMB48,000,000 would be recognised
(2020: recoverable amounts would be equal to carrying
amounts).

If the budgeted sales covering 5-year period were reduced by
5%, while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of Sichuan Jinshida CGU would be reduced to
approximately RMB 158,000,000 and a further impairment of
approximately RMB 19,000,000 would be recognised.

FEESAREEZERERAF

AEEZVE BEARRKBIZARA
SEAEARKRELAHEBERES (DT
NeReReELEM]) 2HE - RNE
Z2021F12A31BLLEFE EFER
milekERELEUZERER
EHAEBZYE BELERE BT
BENRERBEEEZATRO SR &
Z2021F12A3BIEFEEAXAEE Y
X BERERE BEEENRERE
EERENARKE27,0050007T - A
R#6,342,000t & A R#194,0007T
(20204 : &) - Al W Bl £ &L M) & &
ERCELBENZCEREEET A
BMEDHBLEXGERM®RE -5 m)
cRERSELENUFECHEERE
Z T AT AL IR K A20% (20204 - 21%) o
BenB8zREERXREMI% (2020
F UL REBRXEE -FEERE
BZHEMIFERRXSERSRARLH
ZiEE BEREAEHEEREMNX 66
BEDREBEOISHERSELENLZ
BERBLREEBH RKRR ZAAME
$ o

EEERR FMNZFRENEMEGIE
AREH K Iretym)eRERSE

EBUMNKREEBBA WO - Wi
WEEE B35% (2020F : 25%) M H
M2BEFTE AN eRERSE
ABUMAKREEERRDEDARE
128,000,0007T * ¥ 78 & — Z HE R IR E
#“ AR ®48,000,0007T (20204 - AT 4k
CEBEEREKEE) °

MEBREAFHENREHESERDS5%
M2 e RN R £ ER
CTELABUNAKRESE/RRISEOA
R #158,000,0007T ' W /R # — F W R
HE L AR®E19,000,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. L E &

Mining
rights
PRUERE
RMB'000
ARETF T
COST: R :
As at 1 January 2020, as at 31 December 2020, R2020F1A1H - mM2020F12/318
as at 1 January 2021 and as af 31 December 2021 R20215F11H kR2021412H31H 62,785
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND R BERRE:
IMPAIRMENT:
As at 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 21,041
Charge for the year FAXH 1,988
As at 31 December 2020 HR2020F12A318
and as at 1 January 2021 KRR2021F1A1H 23,029
Impairment loss recognised B HERBERE 6,342
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%F12H31H 29,371
CARRYING AMOUNT: BREE:
As at 31 December 2021 M2021€12831H 33,414
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%F12H31H 39,756

The intangible assets represent mining rights of marble
reserves in the Zhangjiaba Mine which is located in Jiangyou
County, Sichuan Province, the PRC. The Mine is operated
by the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Sichuan
Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., lid.* (“Sichuan Jinshida"). The
local government granted the mining permits to Sichuan
Jinshida with a term of 10 years to 1 February 2021 and

further extend 5 years to 1 February 2026.

The Group conducted a reviews of the recoverable amount
of its intangible assets in 2021 and 2020. The Group's

infangible assefs are used in the Group's Sichuan Jinshida

CGU. Details please refer to note 17.

No impairment loss was recognised for the year ended

31 December 2020.

* English translation for identification only
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. iR 5
Leasehold Leased
lands property  Motor vehicle Total
HELH HENXE AE Eoh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT
Cost: A
As at T January 2020 R202061 A1H 2,457 2,685 720 5,862
Addition NE - 1,054 - 1,054
Termination of lease BILRE - (2,685 - (2,685)
Exchange realignment B R - (56] (42 98)
As at 31 December 2020 #2020 12A31H 2,457 998 678 4133
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:
As at 1 January 2020 R202051H1H 1,238 662 84 1,984
Charge for the year FERXH 34 1,329 143 1,506
Exchange realignment P R - (15] (12) (27)
Termination of lease RIERE - (1,515 - (1,515)
As at 31 December 2020 M2020%12R31H 1,272 461 215 1,948
Cost: A
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%1 818 2,457 998 678 4133
Termination of lease KIEHE - (983) - (983)
Exchange alignment [EH R - (15) (20) (35)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12R318 2,457 = 658 3,115
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:
As at 1 January 2021 R202141 418 1,272 461 215 1,948
Charge for the year FRXI 34 528 134 696
Impairment loss recognised ERDRER 194 = = 194
Exchange realignment [ 51 3% - (6] (9 (15)
Termination of lease RIEHE - (983) - (983)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021412R31H 1,500 = 340 1,840
Carrying amounts: BREE:
As at 31 December 2021 W2021F12A31H 957 - 318 1,275
As at 31 December 2020 ©2020512A318 1,185 537 463 2,185

M)l FEReEEEMARENEFIS
M7 -

Details of impairment assessments of Sichuan Jinshida CGU
are set out in note 17.

HEZRERHBABRA/HARKES,355,000
7T (20204 - AR¥1,946,0007T) °

The total cash outflow of leases were approximately

RMB3,355,000 (2020: RMBT,946,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Confinved) 19. HHBEEE @

leasehold lands represents lump sum considerations paid or
payable by the Group to acquire leasehold lands located
in the PRC under the medium-ferm lease where ifs mining
infrastructure are primarily located. The Group is the registered
owner of these leasehold land. These leasehold lands are with
lease periods of 48 to 50 years and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land leases other
than payments based on rateable values set by the relevant
government authorities. These payments vary from time fo fime
and are payable to the relevant government authorities. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payment can be allocated
reliably.

The Group leases motor vehicle in Hong Kong (2020: one
property and motor vehicle) for its operations. lease contracts
for the leased properties are entered into for fixed term of
2 vears as at 31 December 2020 and no exfension and
termination options. The motor vehicle leases for 4.5 years for
both vears. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a confract and defermines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB170,000 (2020:
RMB261,000) are recognised with motor vehicle as at
31 December 2021. The lease agreement do not impose any
covenants other than the security inferests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. leased assefs may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

In addition to the portfolio of shortterm leases for offices,
warehouse, plant and machinery which are regularly entered
infto by the Group, the Group entered into several short-
term leases for offices and warehouse during the year
ended 31 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the
outstanding lease commitments relating fo shortferm leases is

RMB747,000 (2020: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY
The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of
the Company which, in opinion of the directors, principally
affect the operating results and net assets of the Group. To
give full details of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Place/country of

fn S Bl 35 ¥R P 53

20. A2 ] B A m Z wE A

TREINARRETEMBRARNFE -E
ERR BREFERARYHAKENRERER
EEFEBKEERRE -EERA Fi
PRAM B AR EBIRHMERBNITR -

incorporation/ Nominal value of issued  Percentage of equity

registration and paid-up share/ interests aftributable fo
Company name and operation  Kind of legal enfity ~ registered paid-up capital the Company Principal acfivities

AL/

B ~

EERY/ BRTRBERE/ KN FEH
NAEE ES ARERRR EMBEREAZEE BEEAM TERR

2021: 2020:
2021F:  2020%:
D‘\rgcﬂz held:
ERFA:
Kingstone Indusirial Invesiment Limited The British Limited liability company United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding
Virgin Islands ['US$"
[the "BVI")
EhEXREBERAA RBRAES BRALAA B REZR
Success United Asia Lid. The BVI Limited \iob'\\'\%/ company US$1 100% 100%  Trading of marble slabs
BB TMERAR RBRAEE BREMAF 15T BEEARARM
China Kingsmount Indusfrial Group Limited The BVI Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Inactive
PESIEEEEERAF RBRAEE BREAMAR (B TEe%
China Kingsfield Mining Group Limited The BVI Limited \iobih%y company US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
TReMBEXEEBRAR EBRRMEE BREMAR [E REER
China Kingsgold Mining Group Limited The BVI Limited \iobi\'\%y company US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
FESEREEBARLA EERLES ARALLS %7 et
Tech Melon Catering Management Limited Hong Kong ~ Limited \iobi\'\%/ company US$1 100% = Investment holding
HAREHERARLA &% EREELR %7 et
Indirectly held:
R&HE:
Baiwei (Shenzhen| Investment Management The PRC Limited liability company RMB500,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Co., ltd.*
BE (RN REERARAR HE BREERR AE#500,0007 OEE%
Kingstone (HK| Group Limited Hong Kong  Limited liability company HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
A (BR)REBRAR i ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&’&% 1B7 REAER
Kingstone (Guangzhou) Mable Indusiry Co., lid.* The PRC Limited liability company US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and frading of
['Kingstone Guangzhou'| construction mater'\cﬁs
ﬁE(%&H)E%ﬁME(fﬁE%MIJ) e AREERR 50,000,000% 7T MIREERENH
Sichuan Jinshida The PRC Limited liability company RMB 10,000,000 100% 100%  Mining, processing and frading
. of construction materials

milerE e BREMLAF AR¥10,000,0007 FE MIREEREMH
Tech Melon Limited UK Limited h‘obi\i%y company GBP100 100% - Food brand franchise

B AREERR 10058 REmBEHFEE
Zhuhai Jinhong Stone Industry Co., Lid. * The PRC Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
HKELIARBRAR HE AREERR AK#10,000,0007 RERR

* English translation for identification only

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at

the end of the reporting period or at any fime during the year

(2020: nil).

FEESAREEZERERAF
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 202112431 EFE
21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

}@ﬂ:ﬁ JHAMR

The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: BRIERIBEENEFNT
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
a subsidiary
H W B AR
FEENARE
R
RMB'000
ARETF T

As at 1 January 2020, as af 31 December 2020 and  #2020F1H1H - R202012A318 K&

as at 1 January 2021 202151 H1H 608
Credited to profit or loss (Note 14) FABT (HaF14) (608)
As at 31 December 2021 MW2021F12A8318 -
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused estimated R2021F 128318 - AEBBEASHMG

tax losses of approximately RMB12,335,000 (2020:
RMB51,876,000) available for offsetting against future profits.
No deferred tax asset for both years has been recognised
in respect of such tax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in above unused estimed tax losses,
the Group has unused estimated tax losses of approximately
RMB34,000 (2020: Nil) available for offsefting against future
profits in UK and the unused estimated tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely and up to Pound Sterling ("GBP")
5 million. The remaining unused estimated tax losses will be
expired as below:

FIRIEEEAAR2,3350007T (2020
F: AR¥51,876,0007) o] K $5 K
R M) o BRI R R N 1B R R DA TR - B
I F 2 I 5 o% F R B IR R R E FE AL IR
BE- DERPRGEFHEBET X8
A BRIEEB R ARE34,0007T (2020
FE)RARNEREEERIGEN  BZKR
BRGARABENERIGE &2 5
5,000,000% & - #& T~ KR8 A fh 51 B BB
BRRHEREMT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETTT

2021 20214 - 3,603
2022 2022%F 574 10,591
2023 2023% 3,381 10,841
2024 2024% 1,606 11,728
2025 2025% 3,096 15,113
2026 20265 3,644 =
12,301 51,876

144 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

22. INVENTORIES 22. #8
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETF T
Materials and supplies FE R = 363
Raw material AR 82 -
82 363
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. ® 5 BEWGsRIE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FT T ARETFIT
Trade receivables from contracts RKEBEPERNZE S EWIE
with customers 116,481 230,560
Less: Allowance for credit losses S EE RS (45,214) (151,708)
71,267 /8,852

As at 1 January 2020, trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (before allowance for credit losses) amounted

fo approximately RMB198,666,000.

The Group's trading terms with ifs customers are mainly on
credit. Except for certain customers solicited by the Group
at the beginning of its commercial operation were granted
for a longer credit terms, the credit period is generally up
to three months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Trade
receivable are non-interest bearing.

FEESAREEZERERAF

R ¥198,666,0007T ¢

e

R2020F1AH - REBFANZES
EWFHIE (MR EEERBEMN ORA

AEBEEERFNEZHRATEREER
BRA-BRAKERERAEBARLERDE
HRENETEPERTREREEHIN
EEP-—REER=ZMEA -XKER’
$HE i R 8 R R UORKIR E e BRI
EEREEERR -BEH5REFERT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& Bif 7% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Confinved) 23. B S EWEKIE )

An aged analysis of trade receivables, as at the end
of the reporting period, based on earlier of the invoice
date or revenue recognition date, and net of allowance
for credit losses, is as follows:

RmEHR *ET%%%EI%@‘M&)\HE g
A8 (ARFEERE) BHENHE (B
HREEEREE) WREONOT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETTT

0 to Q0 days O0ZQ0H 17,505 27,030
91 to 180 days Q1E£180H 5,499 17,616
181 to 360 days 181&£360H 6,702 22,989
361 to 720 days 361&720H 41,561 11,217
71,267 78,852

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group's trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately RMB53,762,000 (2020:
RMB51,822,000) (net of allowance for credit losses) which

are pasf due at the end of the reporting period.

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.

The balance of approximately RMB56,322,000 (2020:
RMB65,256,000) was denominated in HK$.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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R2021F12A31B AEENEH
FRSREEHREEERAAERNDAR
#53,762,0007T (2020F : AR ®
51,822,0007T) By E W Bk 3k (& HIBR 12
EEEBEEB) ZAERBSHRE R
5

RETEZRURBN A RE LR &
EEREENSREEEAHEEERS
HREZRYKAEELENEMNES -

HERNARYES56,322,0007T (2020
F:AR®65256,0007T) 2 &R A
JLEt{E-e

BMEFGFBEEN G M BEHRRME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

24. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
(@) Non-current portion

24. TEAFRIE ~ 3% 4 J 3 At B oK H

() *FEHHH

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBETT

Prepayment for acquisition of WEME BERREZ
property, plant and equipment TEfT IR 51,330 51,330
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, RBEMRRE FEHBEMREHA

ER¥41,130,000n 9% - B E

REWRBC R MEBROAR
#10,200,0007T B 7T 32 &2 IE W &
THENFEFSHBEREETAE

info a termination agreement and will be fully repaid to g

prepayment for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment with the amounts of approximately
RMB41,130,000 was completed to acquire and
amounts of approximately RMB 10,200,000 was entered

the Group by 4 years instalments.

(b) Current portion (b) WENEB
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBET T
Prepayment FafRIE 837 566
Deposits B 2,756 2,838
Loan receivables FEUE 5k 423 -
Other receivables H i fE WK IE 367 804
4,383 4,208

RELBR50,0008F (HARK
423,0007T) M) R B S K AR
WENERI0%5 B RARRRA HE
FHOOR R EIE - NE B\ #F A 1A

Loan receivables with principal amounts of GBP50,000
(approximately RMB423,000] are unsecured, interest-
bearing at 10% per annum and repayable affer 90
days from the drawdown date. There is no collateral

obtained from the Group.

Deposits and other receivables with the amounts
approximately RMB636,000 and RMB65,000 (2020:
RMB360,000 and nil) were denominated in HK$ and

GBP respectively.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 7 to

the consolidated financial statements.

FEESAREEZERERAF

T

TREA/HARE636,0007T k AR
65,0007t (20204 : AR #360,000
TRT)z2RE REMEWRED
BT R EEE -

WMEFGEFEERES P RERM
7 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

25.

26.

148

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. Bl kBl EEHY
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are all denominated AEENReMRSFEMHATIE
in the following currencies: WEtE:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT
RMB AR 2,826 1,763
HK$ BT 4,247 2,419
us$ Ep 71 72
GBP e 1 =
7,145 4,254
RMB is not freely convertible info other currencies, however, ARBIAATEREBREMEE HEIRE
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations, the (MEARKXMBINEER G - KNE
Group is permitted fo exchange RMB for other currencies EEEEBERBEETINERBORT
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange BARELBREMBLEE -
business.
TRADE PAYABLES 26. H 5 BEAIE

Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
are normally setled in 90 days. An aged analysis of trade
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

EoRNFREASEER 28 —K&KR
QORRBEMN - REBXZRH EHEN
REWREDTAT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

0 to 60 days 0Z60H 7,453 7,573
61 to 120 days 61ZE120H 1,893 1,370
121 to 180 days 1212180H - -
Over 180 days 180H LA & 6,596 55
15,942 8,098

The average credit terms granted by the suppliers of the
Group up to 90 days.

Trade payables with the amounts of approximately

RMB24,000 (2020: nil) were denominated in GBP.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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#QO0H -

B 5 ENFIELHARKE24,0007T (2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &= & Bl 35 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 2021412431 EFE
27. LEASE LIABILITIES

27. FE A

Minimum lease

Minimum lease

payments payments
REHAEFIR RIEMBEFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Within one year —FR 87 624
More than one year but less than —FALEMEFEAR
two years 83 86
More than two years but less than MER ERFUR
five years - Q3
170 803
Amounts due for setilement within one year /A — 4 A1 45 & 8 5018
(shown under current liabilities) (RRBHEaBEENE25) 87 624
Amounts due for setllement after one year 7 —1& # & &I 5IA
(shown under non-current liabilities) (RIERBARETZ) 83 179
170 803

REE

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied fo

lease liabilities is 1.98% (2020: 3.6%).

The balances were denominated in HK$ for both years.

FEESAREEZERERAF

18 F& YO0 4 7 15 48 & & 3R A
E751.98% (20205 : 3.6%) °

AZEERTMEFEHAETEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

S il 35 ¥R & b 53

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. oAt A 5k 0E M RE T

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR AREF T

Payables relating fo: BB % IR A B e FE A ROR
Taxes other than income tax FHIE (FTEHIRRIN) 2,230 1,558
Payroll and welfare TEREF 5,527 5,258
Contract liabilities aHaE 1,081 Q4
Amount due to a former director B —RAIEERIE = 1,240
Accruals and other payables st B A M E M EM A 11,131 10,350
19,969 18,500

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised of accrued
interest expense, legal and professional fee and utilities
expenses.

As at 1 January 2020, contract liabilities amounted to

approximately RMB131,000.

Contract liabilities represented advance payments received
from customers for sales of marble and related products
pursuant fo the respective sales contracts before the control of
the products are passed to the customers.

Accruals and other payable with the amounts of approximately

RMB4,283,000 and RMB299,000 (2020: RMB5,299,000
and nil) are denominated in HK$ and GBP respectively.
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EFERLREMENRBEETERRE RS
MEBR EAEMEXEAURKEER-

R2020F1ATR - AaRNEBBHRARK
131,0007T °

EMAEERERENEBEBREZERPH
REMBEEESONHEEKREL KA
7 an A & P WY TR A 5RO -

THENHNARK4,283,000t & A
R#299,000T (2020 : AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 2021412431 EFE
29. AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR

fn S Bl 35 ¥R P 53

29. MEAT S a0H

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR AREF T

Loan from a director (Note a) REEEMER (Hita) 4,748 4,444
Amount due to a director (Note b) BN ZESFFIE (HiEb) 1,357 1,850
6,105 6,294

The amount due was denominated in HK$ for both years.

R EFEZ ENRIBABTAHE

Notes: Mt -

(a) The loan from the Group's director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, is unsecured, (a) REASEEESHKELAEMNERAERE .
interest bearing at 10% per annum and repayable within 1 year from REMEIO% 8 -BAAEKAHLIRRA D
respective extension date or drawdown date as appropriate. The loan (RERME) R —FRNEE - ZEERHR
will be matured on September 2022. —E-_FAATIH-

(b) The amount due to the Group's director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, is (b) ERAREEESSKBLENRELSEERA-
unsecured, interestree and repayable on demand. RECBRRERER-

30. OTHER LOANS 30. HoAth Bk
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETT

Creditor A (Note a) ERBRRA (B ita) 3,270 3,367

Creditor B (Note b) JENBRFB (Krath) - 500

Creditor C (Note ¢) JERBRFNC (Hfitc) 3,863 -

7,133 3,867

Other loans were denominated in HK$ for both years.
Notes:

(a) The loans are unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per annum and
repayable within 1 year from respective drawdown date. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the loans were further extended 2
years from the original drawdown date. The loans of RMB1,635,000
and RMB1,635,000 will be matured in January 2022 or February
2022 respectively. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the
loans were further extended 1 year from the respective maturity date and

will be matured in January 2023 and February 2023.

(b) The loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable
on demand.
c) The loans are unsecured, inferest bearing at 10% and repayable within

1 year from respective drawdown date.

FEESAREEZERERAF

RREFEZEMERABTAE

ET

(a)

(b)

(c)

ZEERRERER REFES%EHE AR E
REBHET —FRAEE-BE2021F12A8
JALEFE ZEEREBRIENABHELE—F
EHMFE-2BEAARE 635000 kAR
®1,635,0007 BB 56 5 B 202291 A8k
202242 8 (RIERTE) BIH - RIRE HARIE -
ZEEFEAREIHBE - STEHIELH R
BRI =F-AR=ZZT-=F="/[3H-

RERARER BEREI %G AL ARE
S -

ZEERAEER RI0% S AR ERREL
BHEERT —FAEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

(a)

(b)

On 8 August 2018, the Company received a writ of
summons (the “Writ") issued in the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of Hong Kong under Commercial
List Action No. 5 of 2018 (the "Action”) by Mr. Li Jiaju
(the “Plaintiff A"} against Kinwin International Investment
Limited (the “1st Defendant’), a company wholly owned
by a former director, the Company (the “2nd Defendant”)
and the former director [the “3rd Defendant”), in relation
to a claim for the sum of approximately HK$23.7
million plus interest and cosfs against the 1st Defendant
or alternatively, a claim for a sum of approximately
HK$21.2 million plus interest and costs against the
Company or alternatively a claim for the sum owned by
the 1st Defendant against the 3rd Defendant, pursuant
to a loan agreement between the Plaintiff A and the 1st
Defendant and an alleged deed of assignment that was
executed between the Plaintiff A, 1st Defendant, the 2nd
Defendant. The Company considered no provision made
for the case as this proceeding is still at its early stage
and the Company is highly unlikely to incur any further
liability as ot 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020.

On 22 August 2018, the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“High Court’) handed
down a judgment to dismiss the application for
summary judgment from Zhongtai International Wealth
Management Llimited (the “Plaintiff B") which is the
financier of Royal Moon for underwriting of open offer
announced by the Company on 14 May 2015, for
a claim that the Company is liable to account to the
Plaintiff B for wrongfully returning the balance of fund of
approximately HK$61.4 million from the open offer bank
account to Royal Moon on the ground of the alleged
breach of trust and/or breach of equitable/fiduciary
duties.

152 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

A==\
i [y ]

31.

Al 75 ¥R % Bt 5

¥ w8

(a)

R2018F8A8H AR REEZF
ZHMELE(TREF]RIE2018F
BMEBAFRESR ([FFRRN
FEEmE AR RFAESH2EE
BRREBRABA([F—WE] —
BHAEEEFE2EHBZRA)
ARAR(IEF-_HE])RAAEE
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©# 423,700,000 7T 5 M A &
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NERZZRE FHBE=HER
HWEE - BHERNEBIRE-
ARBRBA AR B ADER R
TIHARE R B 2021 12A318 &
20205 12A31HB A A & T KA &
EfEAE-—FTAGE KL EL
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RELBERZRARNA AR RFREE
RITERPHRMWANEAREESH
BEHO61,400,0008 cimmRE 2
BLEF BARERERERRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 2021412431 EFE
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

The Plaintiff B is claiming for equitable compensation
and/or damages, and/or account of profits on the
ground of the Company’s breach of trust, together with
an order to pay to the Plaintiff B such sum as may be
found due or payable, including relevant interests and
costs. The Plaintiff B is also seeking for a declaration
that the Company is liable fo account to the Plaintiff B
for the balance of the fund in the open offer account of
the Company or such other sum as the Court thinks fit on
the ground of its breach of trust.

The Company considered no provision made for the
case as this proceeding is sfill at its early stage and the
Company is highly unlikely fo incur any further liability
os at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

On 12 March 2019,
notification of proceeding served by Guangzhou City

the Company received a

Huangpu district People’s Court pursuant to which
Mr. Cai You (the “Plaintiff C") commenced a legal
proceedings against Sichuan Jinshida (o wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company] (the “Defendant A”),
Kingstone Guangzhou, (the "Defendant B") and other,
due to the disputes of an agreement dated @ August
2013 for assignment of loan between Sichuan Jinshida
(as assignor) Mr. Cai You (“Mr. Cai’] (os assignee)
and Guangdong Huaxia Financial Guarantee Co., (as
guarantor of the assignment agreement] pursuant to
which Sichuan Jinshida has agreed to assign and Mr.
Cai has agreed to accept Sichuan Jinshida's rights,
title, interest and benefits in and to the loan at a fotal

consideration of RMB40,000,000.

Pursuant to the civil compliant, the Plaintiff C claims
against Sichuan Jinshida and other defedants (i) to
rescind the assignment agreement and an alleged
supplemental agreement, (i) to return the deposit and
part of consideration in amount of RMB8.0 million in
aggregate, |iii) to pay compensation of RMB5.0 million.

FEESAREEZERERAF

A==\
i O

31.

Al 1% ¥R % Bt 5

A s P ()

(b]

(c)

(&)

RELRARREREEMRES
THER XEBEEBEE R/HX
HAEME YERBESIHRE
LEBAEBRN S BEE
BANERER RELTESKRE
EARRARRARRCRABERP Z
BEespEmARE LA EEEIX
TRRABEHEMERE BEHER
NAERER-

ARBRBR AREBADERFR
UEREE BER2021F12H318 &
2020F 1231 B AR 2 & K7 &%
EEEFNE-—FEE RLE K
IR -

MR2019F3/8 128 XA a#EE
M EE R ARER X EZFDRB
M-E EZREAEE(TRER]D A
HUllekE (EREERAN) EH
FE(IEEE] EREAZAI)R
EREEMERRARIA (ER
EiEha ERA)ZHEFTLA A
HR2013F8ACHB ZEEE X
BEEFEMHEARAZZEM
BrAam)ll£&E(TREF])
EABRM(IWEZ]) BREFR
REzZHE HIeBEERES
FEELTLECRAEEMADIEE
EHREEREZREZEN A
B Eakias BRERARE
40,000,0007T °

REZEFRFR FEEEL
1] B T R M (1) 08H %
HEGHREBEEGE ()R
EHERBOREALARS
8,000,0007 - [iii) 3 fi B 8 & A
K #5,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 202112431 EFE
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(c)

(Continued)

On 18 December 2019, Guangzhou City Huangpu
District People's Court handed down a judgment
against Sichuan Jinshida in respect of the claim for
the refund of the deposit and part of consideration in
amount of RMB8.0 million (the “Claim”), together with
interest thereon. The Group filed an appeal petition
at the Guangdong Provincial Guangzhou Municipal
Intermediate People’s court (the “Guangzhou Intermediate
Court]. The hearings were made in April and May
2020. The Guangzhou Intermediate Court handed
down the judgement to uphold the Claim and withdraw
the interest on the Claim fo be bore by the Group.

A provision for litigation of approximately RMB10.6
million regarding this case was recognised for the year

ended 31 December 2019.

On 11 December 2020, the Plaintiff C had signed a
setflement agreement with Defendant A and Defendant B
to setfle the case above for a tofal consideration in
amount of RMB7.2 million. The Group had fully paid the
setflement during the year ended 31 December 2020.

32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION

==\
ik O

31.

Bl 35 ¥R 2R P 5E

i n A )

(c)

(#%&)

M2019F12A18H ERE E M
mEHRAREERARD)EE
EHH ARERESRBOKES
HAR®S,000,000L ([HR &
B EZREBMNE -AEECD M
BEREBMTHRARZER ([E
JH A BE ) 4R H b AR o BN B R
20204 A RS R BRI ETTEER
HEHRAGEHEAREFRESHE
BAAERRSBENNE -

BE2019F12A31BLEFE -2
RURTERFLBEBEOARR
10,600,0007T °

M2020F12A11H RERNEK
THRREELRBNEHZE Lt
EHLBREARKZ,200,000T
M- AEEZXNEHE2020F12
ABVRLEFEATHINRE-

32. 1RIBRAM

RMB'000
AR®T

As at 1 January 2020, as at 31 December 2020, MR2020F 1 A18 - 1A2020F12H318
as at 1 January 2021 and as at 31 December 2021 202161 A1H k20214 12A31H 2,697

The Group is required to make payments for restoration and

rehabilitation of certain land after the sites have been mined.

The provision is measured in accordance with the relevant

rules and regulations applicable in the PRC at the end of the

reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215612A31 B L&

fn S Al 75 ¥R 2= Pid 53

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number of shares Amounts
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREMEC.IBIZEEBR RHOEE &8
‘000 RMB’000
T AR® TR
Authorised: EE
At the beginning/end of RS HY), HR
the reporting period 150,000,000 1,215,275
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
At the beginning/end of R &E BT, HBIR
the reporting period 2,832,083 24,435

34. RESERVES

Contributed reserve

It represents the aggregate amount of the consideration of
RMB24,480,000 paid to the former owners of Sichuan
Jinshida by the ultimate controlling shareholder to obtain
the control over Sichuan Jinshida by 14 March 2008 after
neffing off the investment cost of RMB10,000,000 paid by
the Group on the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Sichuan Jinshida from the ultimate controlling shareholder
pursuant to the reorganisation, as if the acquisition had
been completed from the beginning of the year ended 31
December 2010. The corresponding liability of the investment
cost of RMB10,000,000 payable fo the ultimate controlling
shareholder arising from the acquisition pursuant to the
reorganisation was classified as a current liability as at 31
December 2009 and the balance was setfled in November

2010.

Share option reserve

Share option reserve represents the fair value of services
estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of the
relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods, the
total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised with a corresponding
increase in the share option reserve.

FEESAREEZERERAF

34. ks

BAREE

WA EBERRIERREARE YN
Il 4 B 3 # ¥ I 48 T R 200843 8 14
BATE ) SRR ES AT S
{8 AR%24,480, 0007 - 4 40 B &
£ [ 5% 4R 15 5 AR 1 B 4R 4 AR AR BT UK B
Il % B i 2 20 B HE T % B0 IR B AR A
R¥10,000,0000 oW =EE
MEZ2010€12A31 8 1L F E B E
=R ERBEAETRBEARES
) 1 B 4R P B AR A AR R A R
10,000,000t EEE FLE KN20004F
1283 1B EARDEE MEZEHD
R2010F11ABE-

BRERE
BREFREENEABEBHARNABBRIUE
HEBBEREMGTBERRZREZ QD
AE HBBEHREERENELD A S
ZARBEHE-SHMZeBEEBE
BREZAAERIEBEBSH (BWEB)R
BoBET YRBERERERERERE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& Bif 7% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z20215F12A31 B ILFE

34. RESERVES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation reserve

Foreign currency franslation reserve represents exchange
differences relating to the franslation of the net assets of the
Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies
fo the Group's presentation currency (i.e. RMB) which are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency franslation reserve. Such
exchange differences accumulated in the foreign currency
franslation reserve are reclassified to retained profits/
[accumulated losses) on the disposal of the foreign operations.

34. fEf o)

IS BRE RS
SNEBRBEREREBAREBIIETHNFE
ERENEEERESAKRENZIINEE
(MARB ) ELMERZH BEERENXREM
EEWSEERL RN EREFEEHRGT N
SNEMBRFE R HELZERN LSR8
BIEBRBEHROBEREBEN, (R
BEig)

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. W B RE wt
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 January RRTBIR20205F 6 H29B 82 1IE—TER 2011
2011 [the “2011 Option Scheme”), which was terminated F1A24BH MR EETE ([201 15658
on 29 June 2020. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed PetEst &l]) - RIEBNR2020F 60 H29R £17
at the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2020, a MERBEFAE BB — BT RRESE
new share option scheme (the "2020 Option Scheme”) RRRERM— BB E B ([20205
was adopted. The Company’s 2020 Option Scheme for BARAERTEI]) - 20206 IR ERT B X 2
the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and EEMEERAERESRHTERER RE
eligible employees. Under the 2020 Option Scheme, the 20200 BRx TS EFEn A EREER
directors may grant options to eligible employees, including (BEAAAIREMNBATNES)RLE
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe PRIEARBARAIRD - thoN RAE A
for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company may, TERFAIMNBE =7 &K L EARAE - A& A
from time fo time, grant share options fo outside third parties RABIRENE BHR -
for sefflement in respect of goods or services provided fo the
Company.
As at 31 December 2021, the number of shares in respect of M20215 128310 RIE201 1 F Bk #E
which options had been granted and remained outstanding FEEREERARITEOBRENS LS
under the 2011 Option Scheme was approximately B 1D 8B 49 5260,165,0008% (20204 -
260,165,000 [2020: 263,248,000), representing 9.2% 263,248,0000%) - HERARRINZBE
(2020: 9.3%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that BAITIR D 89.2% (20204 : 9.3% ) - K&
date. The total number of shares in respect of which options RRARBRRELEAE REBRETS A
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed REOBREMRS EOBRNEBTEEB
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in RAARREMKHEEETRMHAI0% K
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. KRARRRREBLLE REM—FAE
The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of BTRAERTAMEBEANERERS R
which options granted and may be granted to any individual EBETEETEITHORMEE TNMFEBAR
in any one year is not permitied fo exceed 1% of the shares NRAEIPERRE D BETROA% WK T
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior TERRIBIYUFATESTNRRERSE
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted RRRRAEN0.1% K EBEEEBS 000,000
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive BT BIARARNAIRRE LM
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital or
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company's shareholders.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. BEMRERTE )

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the dafe of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is deftermined by the directors of the Company,
and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price

BROzBREANK L AHEA28RRNE
W EMEARENEREN BT B
g m R H B B AR TEFE B HE
BERTE-1TEERARRESEE #
TRERATHESE : (| A2 AR DR E
A HRETE: () AR ERMDREZER

of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii] the AR RS X B FHKTE : Kiii)
average closing price of the shares for the five business days RR RIS BV EE

immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii] the nominal

value of the Company's share.

2011 Option Scheme 201 BB R AERH &

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
2021%12A318 2020%12A318
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of

price per share options  price per share options
sRME S

FHTEE BRERE FHTHEE BiREHA
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
B T BT Th

Outstanding af the beginning of RBRERDKITHE
the reporting period 0.25 263,248 0.25 263,248
lapsed during the year EREH 4.4 (3,083) - -
Outstanding af the end of the reporting period R EBRRITE 0.20 260,165 0.25 263,248
Exercisable af the end of the reporting period RREARAITHE 0.20 260,165 0.25 263,248

The options outstanding at the end of the reporting period
have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.72
years (2020: 7.72 years) and the exercise prices range from
HK$0.0972 to HK$1.74 (2020: HK$0.0972 to HK$7.97).

FEESAREEZERERAF

PR HA R (2R 17 {58 RO P AR A B9 pn 4 F
BHEHE LI BO 72620206 7.72
FIRTEENFO0.0972ETE.74E T
(2020%F : 0.0972BLE7 .97 TT) °
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 35. J B AE ] (o)
The exercise price and exercise period of those share M2021F 128318 Kk2020F12A31
options outstanding under the 2011 Option Scheme as at B 201 1 FERETEIBETHARITES
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are as follows: B RE B TTIE B M ITE AN T -
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREBE SKRITEE THEB
‘000 HK$
T BT
As at 31 December 2021 3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
M2021F12A31H B20145F6 26 B E202456A250 1L
3,290 1.74  From @ June 2014 to 8 June 2024

B2014F6 AR EE2024F6A8H 1t

3,117 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024 692,665 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014
and 2,424,329 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

B2014F 1231988 E2024F12H18H Lt -
BHB692 6657 BRI 20149128
1908 8k 2181718 - RIXHBI2,424,32017 8
[ HER] R2015F 12 10K 2 & 1TfF -

4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
BH2015F 1 A12B#BE2024F12815H 1k

47,200 0.0972  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11 238 E202/7F11H228 1t

198,246 0.1172  From 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029
B2019F4 158 £ E2029F4 148 1k
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Coninued) 35. Ji IR T ) )
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREBE SKRITEE TEB
‘000 HK$
T ETT
As at 31 December 2020 1,351 7.97  Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and
MR2020%F12A31H 25% exercisable form 4 November 2011, 4

November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to
3 November 2021, respectively.

B50% 25% R25% ML Bl E=4#t DRI B
2011%F 11848 2012F11 A4H %20134F
1TA4B#EZE2021F 11 A3H LA F17fF

3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B2014F6 268 E2024F6A825H 1E

3,290 1.74  From 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024
BH2014F6A9RBE2024F6H8A IE

4,849 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024 692,665 options offered may be
exercised on or affer 19 December 2014;
and 4,155,992 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

B2014F 128198 #E2024F12H18H Lt

B R692, 66510 BB HER] 2014124
198 sk 2178 - RIFHEI4,155,99217 8
R #ER] A2015F 12 10 2 & 1TfF -

4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
H2015F1 A12B#E2024F12815H 1

47,200 0.0972  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017%11 A23HRE2027F11 228 1t

198,246 0.1172  From 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029
B2019F4 150 £ E2029F4 148 1k
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued) 35. Ji BB R B )
No share option granted, forfeited, exercised or expired HZE2021F12A318ILFE - BHEBRE
during the year ended 31 December 2021. BRE BRI BITEXEER-
No share option granted, forfeited, exercised, lapsed or B ZE2020F12A31HILFE - BEBE
expired during the year ended 31 December 2020. BEH BRI BITEREEW-
No share option was granted under 2020 Option Scheme. BERIR2020F AT B L B HE -
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BAKME
The Group had outstanding commitments as follows: REBEARBITAENT
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Contracted but not provided for: BEQNEREBE:
Purchase of property, plant and BEDE WENMREG
equipment 8,830 8,830
Construction of property, plant and BEDE WENRE
equipment 6,800 6,800
15,630 15,630
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BT R 5
Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the GBI R REMIBDTIRE B NE
Group had the following significant related party transactions: BEUTEAREBAIRS:
(a) Key management compensation (o) TEEBEAEME
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARET T
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind o ILEREDMME 2,085 2,366
Retirement benefits scheme contribution 3R K48 F 5+ &I 5% 15 18
2,100 2,384
The remuneration of directors and key executives is EENTETHRAE ZFH BB
defermined by the remuneration committee having regard ZEGRKRERBEARBERMSBE
to the performance of individuals and market frends. REETE °
(b) Interest on loan from a director (b) EEERFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARET T
Interest on loan from a director BERERAE 442 403
(c) Balances with related parties (c) HEEBEERS WERR
Details of the balances with related parties at the end REERR BT &R
of the reporting period are set out in Note 29 to the RN ZEE M BHRRMET29 -

consolidated financial statements.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. ARA T BRI
THE COMPANY

2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARMIEE 8 -
Right-of-use assets PRAEEE 318 1,000
326 1,000
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayment, deposits and other FERRIR - & e HoAh e WK IR
receivables 636 360
Cash and cash equivalents HehBRLEEY 3,879 319
4,515 679
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBaE
Llease liabilities HEAE 87 624
Other payables and accruals B EN B R ERTE A 5,039 4,581
Amount due fo a subsidiary JRE A< BT /&8 2 B FRIE 8 -
Amount due to a director T ZE =8 6,105 6,294
Other loans HEER 7,133 3,367
18,372 14,866
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (13,857) (14,187)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERABASGE
LIABILITIES (13,531) (13,187)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Llease liabilities HEAE 83 179
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (13,614) (13,366)
EQUITY E=
Share capital &% 72 24,435 24,435
Reserves (Note) B (M) (38,049) (37,801)
TOTAL EQUITY HERER (13,614) (13,3606)
Signed on its behalf of the board of directors by: HTIIEERRESTRE:
Zhang Cuiwei Zhang Weijun
RER REE
Director Director
g R
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. AN T BRI w0
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B & -
Reserve movement of the Company RRBEEZS

Foreign currency

Share Share option translation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BB E BRERE IHRERE 2HER B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBT ARBTFT ARETR ARETT

As at 1 January 2020 202051 A1R 221,144 36,069 31,740 (276,172) 12,781
loss and fotal comprehensive EEEERZABERAE
loss for the year - - 526 (51,108 (50,582

As at 31 December 2020 and ~ #2020F12A31H &

as at 1 Janvary 2021 1202141818 221,144 36,069 32,266 (327,280) (37,801)
loss and fotal comprehensive FEEBREZABRAE

loss for the year - - 393 (641) (248)
lapsed of share options BIREAY - (18,598 - 18,598 -
As at 31 December 2021 W2021%12A318 221,144 17,471 32,659 (309,323) (38,049)
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AR S RHk e

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND A IR AR S H At 2 e A R
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
20174 20184 201904 20204 202145
RMB'O0OO  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'0O00  RMB'000
ARBTFIT AREBETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR

Revenue A 31,383 67,719 65,689 72,765 74,247
Profit/(loss) before tax BEATERN (BE) 7,797 (19,270) (68,505) (30,449) (49,732)
Income fax expenses FriS Bl X = = = = (610)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEA, (EHE) 7,797 (19,270] (68,505) (30,449 (50,342)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL R B AR LR
POSITION
As at 31 December
MW12B318
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

20174 2018% 20194 2020% 2021
RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT AR®TRI AR¥TR

Non-current assets ERBEE 247 046 285992 275684 267,175 230,689
Current assets REEE 220,093 141,052 112,527 87,677 82,877
Total assets BEE 467,139 427,044 388,211 354,852 313,566
Current liabilities mEAaE 53,768 22,511 36,341 38,283 49,236
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 3,506 3,305 4,346 3,484 2,780
Total liabilities FEN=R 57,274 25,816 40,687 41,767 52,016
Net assets/total equity FEE/ B 409,865 401,228 347,524 313,085 261,550
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